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Five-Year Financial Summary

T EHBERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF —T—=F ZT——F ZT——F ZT—FTF
Profitability data BFIgE D &E
(RMB million) (AREEHETT)
Revenue Wz 196.8 624.1 1,351.5 1,117.7 833.3
Gross profit EF 19.1 186.9 466.0 373.1 275.2
(Loss)/profit for the year E X (E518), % F (31.2) 67.9 153.9 160.7 114.2
Profitability ratios (%) Z &1 ELER(%)
Gross profit margin FEH= 9.7% 30.0% 34.5% 33.4% 33.0%
Net (loss)/profit margin - JF(&E), &HE  (15.8)% 10.9% 11.4% 14.4% 13.7%
Assets and liabilities Z#EREAEBEIE
data (RMB million) (AREBHER)
Non-current assets FERBEE 129.5 138.2 150.6 126.9 83.0
Current assets MENVEE 1,243.3 1,313.5 1,277.5 1,288.5 477.8
Current liabilities mEaE 278.5 326.2 368.4 4995 254.3
Non-current liability EMBARE 3.1 3.1 3.1 0.0 0.0
Shareholders’ equity A% Rz 1,091.2 1,122.4 1,056.6 915.9 306.5
Asset and working BEEREELES
capital data 2
Current asset ratios (%) MEBENVEELLE(%) 90.6% 90.5% 89.5% 91.0% 85.2%
Current ratios (time) BN R (%) 4.5x 4.0x 3.5x 2.6x 1.9x
Gearing ratios (%) BELE(%) 20.3% 22.5% 24.6% 34.3% 36.6%
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Baofeng Modern International Holdings
Company Limited (“Baofeng Modern” or the “Company”), |
am pleased to present the financial report of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2014.

The past year was a difficult year for the Group and we faced
lots of challenges. With the slowdown of economic growth
in China and the downturn in the international economy,
the retail market was badly hit and the purchasing power
of customers were significantly dampened. Besides, as the
buying habit of Chinese changed to purchase luxury goods
and national brands, and online purchase, the sales of our
own brands were seriously affected. The high inflation rate
in China led to rising costs for raw materials and labor,
resulting in higher production costs which in turns weakened
our competitiveness when compared with those emerging
countries. Being impacted by these factors and with the
intensified market competition, the Group recorded a
significant decline of revenue, gross profit and net profit for
2014.

Looking ahead, the Directors are cautious about the prospect
of operation in China, and we expect that the adverse
operating environment will continue to affect the business
of the Group in 2015. We would focus on developing the
Online to Offline (“020") business model for the sales and
distribution of our products. Besides, we will deploy more
resources into the research and development of new materials
for the manufacture of footwear and the research and
application of new technology for shoes. Moreover, the Group
would develop wearable devices business through acquisition
of proprietary technology. We would try our best to introduce
or develop business with growth potential to the Group, with
an aim to improve our performance and maximise the interests
of shareholders.

Chairman’s Statement
FEHREFE
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHREE

Last but not the least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to RE AABRREZEZTES MAEEERE
thank our management and all staff for their dedication and k2 BEESHH RAZUANEEBRE
contribution to the development of the Group. | would also  {EHEIB WA EE - KA T E R HAEEF
like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to BECHER EBBHEIRENS DX
our customers, suppliers, business partners and shareholders BUA R B R o

for their continuous commitment and support.

ZHENG Jingdong TE
Chairman B=
Hong Kong, 25 March 2015 B8 —E—hAF¥=RA=-+HhH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2014 is a difficult and challenging year for the Group. The
slowdown of economic growth in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC"); buying habit of Chinese changed to purchase
luxury goods and national brands, and online purchase; the
decline of overseas economy and the high inflation rate in the
PRC all have great impacts on the performance of the Group.
The Group recorded a significant decline of revenue, gross
profit and net profit for the year ended 31 December 2014,
of which the revenue dropped by 68.5% to approximately
RMB196.8 million from last year (2013: approximately
RMB624.1 million).

As a result of the increase of labor and raw material costs
under high inflation environment in the PRC, the gross profit
margin of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
decreased to approximately 9.7% from 2013 of approximately
30.0%.

During the year, the fair value loss on convertible notes and
warrants at fair value through profit or loss was approximately
RMB4.0 million (2013: fair value gain of approximately
RMB17.1 million). As a result, the Group recorded a net loss
of approximately RMB31.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. (2013: net profit of approximately RMB67.9
million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

MEEJE*TRHB& *ﬁ'

—FEHAREEM S SHRE W TR
B —FohEARLMBE ([FE])EHE
BERE FREANBEBECEREZRE
uu&i.\iuu%l’/\&ﬁﬁiaﬁm EIMEE T
BEFRBRESE HUHASBEREES
BEATE- %z54§ ME+=—A=+—
HIEEFEE: Nilzu&é ER R FEREY
KIE TR & ?thﬁTE%s 5% Z 4
A R #196,800,0007T (= =F:HA
E#624,100,0007T) °

RREBRRESCTESE T RRMEK
AEMOFET BHE-_FT-—NF+-A
St BLEFEAXAEEZENXH T
—=FH430.0% FFEEL.7% °

RERBERZIEAFEFABZR Z ATRRKR
ZFBEERRABREZZLATFEBRBRNARAR
M40000007c( T—=F:QAFEKZE
# ANR¥17,100,00070) - AL HE=-Z
—ME+-_A=Z+—BLEFEAEE
BEEFELNAR31,200,0007T (==
— =4 FHHH ARK®67,900,0007T) °

EHBOE

Revenue by Product Category BERENEN KRS
2014 2013 Decrease
—E-NEF —E—= VR
RMB’000 RMB'000 %
AR T ARET T %
Revenue (Boree Products) W (BAEMR) 51,488 224,470 (77.1%)
Revenue (Baofeng Products) Wes (BIEER) 847 90,888 (99.1%)
Revenue (Brand Licensee Business) Wzs (##E M E75) 779 13,928 (94.4%)
Revenue (OEM Business) U 25 (OEMZEFS) 143,659 294,836 (51.3%)
Revenue (Total) Wi (48%8) 196,773 624,122 (68.5%)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Own Branded Business

The depressed economic growth of the PRC and the change
of local customers’ shopping habit led to an adverse operating
environment for the retail market in the PRC. Except for
several large size footwear manufacturers in the PRC, it is a
difficult time for the Group and the footwear manufacturing
industry. The Boree brand, targeting the medium-to-high-
end market of slippers, sandals and casual footwear, recorded
a revenue for the year amounted to approximately RMB51.5
million (2013: approximately RMB224.5 million), representing
a 77.1% decrease from the previous year. On the other hand,
the Baofeng brand, focusing on the mass market, suffered a
substantial decline in sales during the year as many customers
from the mass market in the PRC changed to online purchase.
Revenue generated from the Baofeng brand amounted to
approximately RMB0.8 million in 2014, representing a decrease
of 99.1% from approximately RMB90.9 million in 2013.

Brand Licensee Business

Due to the serious piracy problem in the PRC, the performance
of our brand licensee business was beyond our expectation,
which only generated revenue of approximately RMBO0.8
million for the year (2013: approximately RMB13.9 million)
from the footwear sales of authorised brand “SpongeBob”
and “NBA”". The performance in the branded licensee business
could not meet our expectation and not in proportion to the
cost injected. As the Group expected the piracy problem will
not be solved in the PRC in the foreseeable future, the Group
do not intend to extend the franchise license when expired.

OEM Business

During the year, the sales of Group’s OEM business declined
by RMB151.1 million or 51.3% to approximately RMB143.7
million as compared with last year (2013: approximately
RMB294.8 million). The labour cost and the raw material cost
are the major production cost of footwear. Following the
high inflation rate and the appreciation of RMB in the PRC in
the past few years, the labour cost and the raw material cost
increased a lot. Therefore, the competitiveness of footwear
in the PRC decreased when compared with those emerging
countries, such as India, resulting in the poor performance of
the OEM business during the year.

BEEREEK
FRELEERBEREHBEREDE BN
B BYHHTEMSEHREERRN R
BIER AR EREEEREIN B AT EEAEE
NEBELEY L R - P SR
BERBEMSHNEAREFANERLD
AR®51,500,0007C (ZFE—=F : HAR
#6224,500,0007T) - R EF W APT77.1% °
S—FHHE ARFBRARTSERTERN L
BE HEARLEMENE R REHEESEN
FAHERFEASEARBRL —E—NFEIE
R E A R 800,000 BB —=
F 49 AR #90,900,0007T 37 4299.1% -

REREER
THRBREMNEREEYE  AEERE
MEEBNRBTWTEL - KEERER
ISR EBE | RINBAIMERBHEES
R #) A R #800,0007T (Z T — =4 :
#9 AR #13,900,0007T ) © 37 ke E 75 &
IRREER|TEER - B B AKATAIELL -
N £ 878 B P B0 25 i S B A ] B B9 8 2R N
REfR R Wit BIE R M TEHR -

OEME 7%
FRNAEBOEMEBHNHERREFT
F& A R#151,100,0007T5k51.3% E X AR
#143,700,0007T (ZZE—=F : H AR
294,800,0007T ) ° # T AR AN I R M ko 4%
AREBEEMNTER A -ARBELFHR
EBEREXREtRARBHE SITKEAK
FRAF R AN 77 A T R @ 38 0 o BRI b - R B
BRHFEHENESEHNERK L ERERFT
T SERNOEMEERIB T E-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Selling and Distribution Expenses

During the year, selling and distribution expenses decreased by
71.7% to approximately RMB13.8 million as compared with
that of last year (2013: approximately RMB48.7 million), which
accounted for 7.0% (2013: 7.8%) of the Group's revenue. The
decrease was consistent with the decrease in Group’s revenue.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses recorded a decrease
of 41.7% to approximately RMB35.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2014 as compared with that of last year
(2013: approximately RMB61.6 million), which accounted for
18.3% (2013: 9.9%) of the Group’s revenue. As the Group
adopted a series of cost saving plans in 2014, the general and
administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB25.7
million.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year, net cash inflow from operating activities of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB70.6 million (2013:
approximately RMB75.0 million). As at 31 December 2014,
cash and bank balances were approximately RMB1,148.9
million, maintaining a stable level as compared with the
cash and bank balances as at the end of last year (2013:
approximately RMB1,173.5 million). In the recent years,
China implemented a series of economic austerity measures,
including adjusting the bank deposit reserve ratio, in order
to slow down its overhead economy. In order to maintain a
good relationship with banks and have a more favorable term
of facilities in the future, the Group maintained the bank
borrowings at a certain level even there were substantive
cash and bank balances in the Group. As at 31 December
2014, the interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group
were approximately RMB121.9 million (2013: approximately
RMB142.0 million). All bank loans were repayable within one
year.

EEENWmKR DM

Bt % B B

HERDHEAX

RERN HERDHAXXEEXFHELER
D71.7%EH AR ¥13,800,000 (=F
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# AN R #75,000,0000T) c AT — 4
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#51,148,900,0000 B EF KR (ZZF—=
& AR #1,173,500,0007T ) 18 4 45
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AEERARKBMESEEMNOREGR BE
AEBHERERERRTES A5
TMHEF —TERKENRITER - AEER =
T—NE+—-A=+—HMBETEE
24 8 ANR#121,900,0007T (ZF — =4 :
# AR #142,000,0007T) - FT A RITE X
AR—FREE-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2014, the bills payables were secured by
the Group’s pledged deposits amounting to approximately
RMB5.7 million (2013: approximately RMB5.5 million). The
bank borrowings of the Group were also secured by a pledge
of the Group’s buildings and land use right with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB22.2 million (2013: approximately
RMB25.5 million) and approximately RMB35.1 million (2013:
approximately RMB5.2 million) respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there were no material
contingent liabilities.

Foreign Exchange Risk

During the year, the sales of the Group were mainly
denominated in US dollars and Renminbi. The cost of sales and
operating expenses were mainly denominated in Renminbi.
The management of the Group monitors the foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure if necessary.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was
20.3% (2013: 22.5%). Gearing ratio was calculated as total
debts divided by the total equity plus total debts. Total debts
refers to the total liabilities minus the sum of tax payable,
dividend payable and deferred tax liability.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of
approximately 970 employees (2013: approximately 1,000
employees).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Net Proceeds from the Share Offering

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had unutilised net
proceeds from the IPO in the amount of approximately
RMB147.2 million, representing approximately 38% of
the total net proceeds from the IPO (the “Unutilised Net
Proceeds”). In light of current market conditions of footwear
industry in the PRC, the Company believes that the use of
the Unutilised Net Proceeds under the original intended
purpose may no longer meets the Group’s imminent business
development needs. In order to maximise the benefits of the
Company and its shareholders, the Company may change
the usage of the Unutilised Net Proceeds from the original
intended purposes to working capital and other general
corporate purposes of the Group. If this happen, further
announcements will be made by the Company as and when
appropriate in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange on 28 January 2011 with net
proceeds received by the Company from the share offering
of HK$453,570,000 (approximately RMB387,666,000) (after
deducting underwriting commission and related expenses).

The utilisation of the net proceeds as at 31 December 2014 is
set out as follows:

EEENWmKR DM

BROBEMSREFERAE

RZE—WNFE+_A=+—H £KRalz
AOAE A AHABEMERIBFELOAEA
R#147,200,0007t HERBAAHAEE
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BFEEETEFTAAEBBIMNERE
BEZ - B ERNF RERE 2 Flz - A
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PERR - MPEREE AR R ERER
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R #¥387,666,0007T) (LHMKBEHEEE K
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RZZE-—NFE+_A=+—H FBERIA
FEMBREREINMNT

Nature Amount raised Amount utilised
(=1 &< BRAEEHE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T T ARET T
To increase production capacity B INE e 135,683 86,128
Marketing and advertising expenses HENEERY 96,917 96,917
To acquire other branded product business U & B b 52 b8 & Sh 3 75 58,150 =
To strengthen design capability 58 SR T RE 19,383 10,238
To establish flagship shops and showrooms B 3% i f& /5 N [R5l = 19,383 4,090
To strengthen the distribution resource Mg 5 HE IR B R4
planning system 19,383 4,351
General working capital —REEESD 38,767 38,767
Total wEt 387,666 240,491

HIERFE —T—FFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWE DN

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In view of the uncertainties in the PRC and global economy
and high inflation rate in the PRC, we expect the adverse
operating environment will continue affect the performance of
the Group in 2015.

To cope with the downturn of the industry and the change
of customers’ buying habit to online purchase, the Group
adjusted its distribution channel with those national retail
chains instead of single regional distributors in order to
increase the penetration rate of the products of the Group.
The Group would focus on developing 020 business model
for the sales and distribution of the products of the Group in
2015.

Besides the sales model, the Group will put significant
resources into the research and development of new materials
to be used in the manufacture of footwear in terms of wear-
resistance, portability, air permeability and antibacterial
property, which will also help to reduce the cost effectively.
The Group will selectively develop new types of materials
which will become the new growth drivers of the Group.

Moreover, the Group will conduct further development in
the research and application of new technologies, such as hi-
tech disinfection and deodorization chips for shoes, which can
be widely used in sneakers and specialty footwear given its
proven effect of healthcare and treatment through effectively
eliminating fungus within shoes and prevention of illnesses
such as beriberi and athlete’s foot. The Group will vigorously
develop wearable devices business through consolidation
and acquisition of proprietary technology, develop a range
of wearable chips for shoes (such as those for sports and
health) as the carriers of wearable devices, and introduce new
series of multi-function products. On 24 November 2014, the
Company entered into of a letter of intent with Bluestone
Technologies (Cayman) Limited (“Bluestone”), a third party
independent of and not connected with the Company and
any of its connected persons (having the meaning ascribed
to it under the Listing Rules), pursuant to which, Bluestone
agrees to transfer the proprietary technology of graphene-
based disinfection devices and pressure-sensitive sensors
for shoes to the Company. The terms of the acquisition are
still under discussion. For details, please refer to the Group’s
announcement dated 24 November 2014.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board and the management of the Company are
committed to the maintenance of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Company believes that good
corporate governance provides a framework that is essential
for effective management, a healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and enhancing shareholders’ value.

The Company has complied with the code provision (the
“Code Provision”) as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules on the Stock Exchange throughout the year ended 31
December 2014, except where otherwise stated. The Company
periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure its continuous compliance.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as the
required standard for securities transactions by the Directors.
The Company made specific enquiries of all the Directors who
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code during the financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board members are:

° Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Appointed as Vice-chairman on
3 February 2015)

Mr. ZHANG Aiguo (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

° Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. SZE Ching Bor

Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Appointed on 21 November
2014)

Mr. CHEUNG Miu (Resigned on 21 November 2014)

TRERHSE

ARREZEMNEEBBINERRIFZ
ERERAFRARERF ARBMEE REFZ
CEEARBREBARERE BREERRQ
AX(E RN EFEBHERRIESRRE
BRI KR 2 248 »

GRERAN RBEE2_F-—HF+ A
=t—BLEFE ARRDETHRMED
MR+ SR ER TR (TREE
ASTRI]) PrEHY ST RS (T5FRARS ) -
ARPEHBRFEREADHR  ARERS

BEM -

EEETESRZNEESTA

AR BB BR AN _E T AR RIBH 8% 1 AT E b E
TAEFETESFRZNEESTRI (1B
ETHEREZTETESFRILIRATEE
Al - XARABEREBEFFELEMER &
RBEZHARSNURFERRZETR
sy RIFTE 2 SR E 2R

EEg
EEEHRAMT:

. BITESE:
BWRRALE (TFERITHEAR)

RF L (R-B—RF=A=
AEZEARIER)

REEEE(R-F-AF-A=
A &)

. FHITEE:
B R St
REREE(R_ZT—NWE+—A
—t+—HEZE)
BB EE(R-_ZT—WNE+— A
—+—HEMT)

HIERFE —T—FFH

13



14

Corporate Governance Report
TXERERBSE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
o Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Appointed on 3 February 2015)

Mr. CHEN Shaohua (Appointed on 3 February 2015)
Professor BAI Changhong (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors” on pages
27 to 29. The composition of the Board is well balanced.
Each of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive
experiences that may contribute to the business of the Group.
The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules
3.10(1) and (2) of the Listing Rules during the financial year. All
independent non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines
for assessment of their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules.

Every director is subject to re-election on retirement by rotation
in accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the "Articles”).

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship among
the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their independent judgement.

The Board is responsible for establishing the overall strategic
development and direction, setting business objectives
and development plans, monitoring the performance of
the business and senior management and making major
investments and funding decisions of the Group.

The daily business operations and administrative functions of
the Group are delegated to the management with department
heads responsible for different aspects of the business and
functions of the Group.

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to formulate
overall strategy of the Group, monitor its financial
performance and maintain effective oversight over the
management. Sufficient notice of meetings is given to
Directors prior to a regular board meeting, and each director
is able to request inclusion of matters in the agenda for board
meeting. Full minutes are prepared after the meetings.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings and the
annual general meeting (“AGM"”) held in the year under
review are summarised as follows:

TRERHSE

EE® (H)
REBEFEMBTESEeR AR TAT
Ag ([RRAFRE])WEFELEFER
A

Number of board
meetings Number of AGM
attended/ attended/held in
held in 2014 2014
—E-MEHES —E-mFHES

BITNESS BITHWRE
SRRE BERERE

Executive Directors BITES
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong BRRAEAE 7/7 1/1
Mr. ZHANG Aiguo (Resigned on REHELEE (RZZ—RHHF

3 February 2015) —A=ZHET) 3/7 0/1
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. SZE Ching Bor LR EE 717 0/1
Mr. CHEUNG Miu (Resigned on 21 wREE (RZT—MEF

November 2014) +—AZ+—HEF) 3/3 0/1
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Appointed FRE R e 4 (R ZZ—PMUF

on 21 November 2014) +—B=-+t—HEZF) 1/2 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors B EHTEE
Professor BAI Changhong (Resigned on 3 BRI ##% (R — R4

February 2015) —A=HEET) 6/7 0/1
Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February Zsgk4 (R-_E—HF =

2015) A=B#&fE) 717 0/1
Ms. AN Na L2 A 717 0/1
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TEERBAE

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including the duties and responsibilities
as set out in D.3 in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules which
include the development and reviewing of policies and
practices on corporate governance and compliance with all
legal and regulatory requirements, monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, development and reviewing of the code
of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees and Directors and reviewing the compliance with
the CG Code, and ensuring proper disclosure in the corporate
governance report of the Company.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

All directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. This is to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. Up to the date of this report,
all the Directors have participated in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by attending training
courses or reading materials on the topics related to corporate
governance and regulations or the Company’s business or their
duties and responsibilities.

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2014 is summarised below:

EENRHEERERS

EREFHRADEBBEIREE IEE
REFHEMB MR BREESENR
BATRESSELIEAFTENTR &
EARERHR MAEZRCEB2 NI
iz BEABEEXRE R RRIISARE
EBREFEHFRBENENN T A2 A
FEREEEE-

NBE-F-ME+-A=+—-AL%
E S EFEENEEVELERMT

Attending seminar(s)/
programme(s)/reading
relevant materials in
relation to the business
or directors’ duties

HEBBREKR
EERENERE
5T &l BIEEE
ERHER
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong ERRELE v/
Mr. ZHANG Aiguo (Resigned on 3 February 2015) R BB L4 (R — A 4E
—A=B#&T) v
Mr. SZE Ching Bor BB R ST AE 4
Mr. CHEUNG Miu (Resigned on 21 November wBEE (RZT—WF
2014) +—A=Z+—HE&T) v
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Appointed on MERLE (RZE—N4F
21 November 2014) tT—AZ+—HEZE) v
Professor BAI Changhong (Resigned on BRUHE (R_T—HF
3 February 2015) —A=HE1E) v
Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February 2015) FREE(RZZE—HF
—AZ=H#&T) v/
Ms. AN Na R+ v/
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1. stipulates that the roles of the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer should be separated and should
not be performed by the same individual.

The Company deviates from this provision because Mr. Zheng
Jingdong has been performing both the roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. The Directors consider that vesting two
roles in the same person provides the Group with strong and
consistent leadership in the development and execution of the
Group’s business strategies and is beneficial to the Group. The
balance of power and authorities is ensured by the operation
of the senior management and the Board, which comprises
experienced and high caliber individuals. The Board currently
comprises 2 executive Directors, 2 non-executive Directors and
3 independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a
strong independence element in its composition.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Independent non-executive Directors have played a significant
role in the Board by bringing their independent judgment at
the Board meeting and scrutinising the Group’'s performance.
Their views carry significant weight in the Board’s decision, in
particular, they bring an impartial view to bear on issues of the
Group's strategy, performance and control.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive
academic, professional and industry expertise and
management experience and have provided their professional
advices to the Board.

The independent non-executive Directors provide independent
advice on the Group's business strategy, results and
management so that all interests of shareholders can be
taken into account, and the interests of the Company and its
shareholders can be protected.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board has
three independent non-executive Directors, Professor Bai
Changhong, Mr. Lee Keung and Ms. An Na, one of which,
being Mr. Lee Keung, possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise
in compliance with the requirements set out in Rules 3.10(1)
and (2) of the Listing Rules.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS (continued)

Professor Bai Changhong and Mr. Lee Keung were resigned
as independent non-executive Directors on 3 February 2015.
Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr. Chen Shaohua were appointed
to replace the positions of Professor Bai Changhong and Mr.
Lee Keung respectively on the same day.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

TERMS OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Each of the non-executive Directors (including independent
non-executive Directors) has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of 3 years (other than
for Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel, initial term of 2 years), which
will continue thereafter until terminated by not less than three
month’s notice (other than for Mr. Cheung Miu, terminated by
not less than two month’s notice) in writing served by either
party on the other.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive
Directors are subject to re-election on retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors, non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors of the Company
has entered into a service contract with the Company for a
specific term. Such term is subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at an AGM at least once every three years in
accordance with the Articles. The Articles of the Company
provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a
casual vacancy in the Board shall hold office until the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting, and any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next AGM of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company currently have three committees, namely,
the audit committee, the remuneration committee and the
nomination committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”),
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
Terms of reference of all Board Committees are in line with
the Code Provision and are available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company’s website at www.baofengmodern.
com. The Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the secretary of the Company
by mail at the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong. The company secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board’s purview to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business matters, such as
suggestions, inquiries and consumer complaints, to the chief
executives.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee are to review
and supervise our Group’s financial reporting process and
internal control system and review and monitor appointment
of the auditors and their independence.

The audit committee comprised three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Keung, Professor Bai
Changhong and Ms. An Na, and Mr. Lee Keung was the
chairperson of the audit committee during the financial
year. On 3 February 2015, Mr. Lee Keung and Professor Bai
Changhong were resigned as chairperson and member of
audit committee, who were replaced by Mr. Chen Shaohua
and Professor Zhao Jinbao respectively on the same day. The
annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been reviewed by the audit committee. The audit
committee held 4 meetings during the financial year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

Details of the attendance of the audit committee are as follow:

BEREES (#)
BREERNHELHFABNT

Members 24 Attendance of Meeting
SRLHERBR
Mr. LEE Keung (Chairperson of audit committee ZF®E4 (BEREZESTER
and resigned on 3 February 2015) NRZTE—RE-A=HEME) 4/4
Professor BAI Changhong (Resigned on HRUBE (R_FT—AF
3 February 2015) —A=H#&T) 2/4
Ms. AN Na i+ 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the remuneration committee on 8
January 2011 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to make recommendations to our Board on the remuneration
policies and structure of the remuneration for the Directors
and senior management and to set up a formal and
transparent procedure for determination of such remuneration
policies. It shall also make recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

The remuneration committee comprised three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Ms. An Na (the chairperson of
the remuneration committee), Professor Bai Changhong and
Mr. Lee Keung during the financial year. The remuneration
committee held 1 meeting during the financial year. Professor
Bai Changhong and Mr. Lee Keung resigned as members
of remuneration committee on 3 February 2015, who were
replaced by Professor Zhao Jinbao and Mr. Chen Shaohua
respectively on the same day.

The details of the attendance of the remuneration committee
are as follows:

Members KB

FHEES

EEgCRT——F—AN\BERLD
AR AU BT 8%+ 0 AT 8 4 5 BDA <7 Bl A S 3 B
ZEg Ut EEBESE -HFHEZES
MEBBRESNEETNSRNEEENH M
BREFMEBENESSEHERER -
I I 7E 32 A R o BN ERSR B IE S\ S B B AR
FFe-¥MEZBEMANSHITEZRSRE
BEMNFHSEAAESSRHEREER

RATBREERN HFMEZESH =BT
FRNITESEHLLE (FHEESER) -
HRIHIR MR 4K - RS B E
BN HFMEEBSRITT —REH-N=ZT
—RAF_A=H BHERUHBRENZTHRLE
BIFHEZESKE RASFAHBEER
HERRDELRERK -

FMEEe L FLEFBNT

Attendance of Meeting
ERHERBR

Ms. AN Na (Chairperson of remuneration
committee)

Professor BAI Changhong (Resigned on
3 February 2015)

Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

LT (FHREEER)

171

ARIHBF(R_ZE—RF
—A=BEHME) 11
TgAEE (R-ZE—HF

Z A= HEHE) 11
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (continued)

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual remuneration of
the members of the senior management of the Company by
band for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out below:

Remuneration band (RMB)

TRERHSE

FMZEEg (8
RIETRIEXEBI S BE-F—MF
+T-A=+-BLEFERARTRERA
BNMEFSROT :

Number of individuals

FMEE(ARY) A"
0 - 500,000 3
500,001 - 1,000,000 2

Details of remuneration of each Director for the year ended
31 December 2014 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board established the nomination committee on 8 January
2011 with written terms of reference in compliance with
CG Code as set out in appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are set out below:

(a) to make recommendations to our Board on the
appointment of Directors;

(b) to review the size, structure and composition of the
Board;

(c) to review the terms of reference, to assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and

(d)  to make recommendations to the Board on the re-
election of Directors to be proposed for shareholders’
approval at the AGM.

The nomination committee comprised the three independent
non-executive Directors, namely Professor Bai Changhong (the
chairperson of the nomination committee), Mr. Lee Keung and
Ms. An Na. On 3 February 2015, Professor Bai Changhong
and Mr. Lee Keung were resigned as chairperson and member
of nomination committee, who were replaced by Professor
Zhao Jinbao and Mr. Chen Shaohua respectively on the same
day. The nomination committee held 2 meetings during the
financial year.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

The details of the attendance of the nomination committee are
as follows:

REZES (#)
RAZERNELEFABOT:

Members KE Attendance of Meeting
2RLEBR
Professor BAl Changhong (Chairperson of AEI#HE (IERZTE82XTFNL
nomination committee and resigned on 3 R-E—RE-A=HE(T)
February 2015) 2/2
Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February 2015) HoghE (N -—ZE—FHE
—A=ZHE1T) 172
Ms. AN Na T+ 2/2
BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY EEEHEZTILEEK

During the financial year, the Group adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve
and maintain diversity on the Board in order to enhance the
effectiveness of the Board.

Pursuant to the Policy, the Group considered the diversity of
the Board members can be achieved through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

The Board will consider to set measurable objectives to
implement the Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Policy from time to
time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group, and in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
The statement by the auditors of the Company about their
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the
independent auditor’s report contained in this annual report.
There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The financial statements
for the financial year have been prepared on a going concern
basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the responsibility to maintain an effective
internal control system in order to protect the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interests. The Board and audit committee
also conduct periodic reviews to ensure the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system. The internal control
system includes a well-established corporate structure and
organisation with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. Each department is responsible for its daily
operations, and is also required to implement and monitor
the strategies and polices adopted by the Board and effective
employment of the resources of the Company, in order to
avoid misappropriation of resources and damages made to the
Company’s assets, and prevent against errors and fraud.

The Board and audit committee assess the effectiveness
of the internal control system and procedures based on
information derived from discussions with the management
of the Company and its external auditor. The Board and audit
committee believe that the existing internal control system is
adequate and effective. The review covers all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls
and risk management functions as well as the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programmes and budget.

The Board has established a clearly defined scope of activities,
responsibility and authority for each department and its
management staff within the Group. The Group has a
defined goal for each department to accomplish, these goals
were discussed in the Board meeting and pass on to the
management through the executive Directors. These goals
will be implemented and closely monitored by the executive
Directors who shall review the operational and financial results
from time to time, and to take any necessary actions for the
improvement of it business activities.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company, Mr. Sze
Ching Bor, Best Mark International Limited and Capital
Vision International Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”) entered into a deed of non-competition in
favour of the Company on 8 January 2011 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”). The undertakings and covenants stipulated
under the Deed of Non-Competition cover any business which
is or may be in competition with the business of any member
of the Group from time to time. The Deed of Non-Competition
has become effective from 28 January 2011. There has been
no change to the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed in writing to
the Company of their compliance with the Deed of Non-
Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the year
ended 31 December 2014.

Upon receiving the Confirmation, the independent non-
executive Directors had reviewed the same as part of the
annual review process. In determining whether the Controlling
Shareholders had fully complied with the non-competition
undertakings in 2014 for the annual assessment, it was noted
that (a) the Controlling Shareholders declared that they had
fully complied with the non-competition undertakings in
the Deed of Non-Competition for the financial year ended
31 December 2014; (b) no new competing business was
reported by the Controlling Shareholders during the year
ended 31 December 2014; and (c) there was no particular
situation rendering the full compliance of the non-competition
undertakings being questionable. In view of the above,
the independent non-executive Directors confirmed that
all of the non-competition undertakings in the Deed of
Non-Competition were complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2014.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration in respect of audit and non-
audit services provided by the Company‘s auditor, Pan-China
(H.K.) CPA Limited, were RMB1,590,000 and nil.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION
WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Information about the Group has been provided to the
shareholders through financial reports, announcements
and general meetings including AGMs in order to keep
shareholders well informed of the business activities and
directions of the Group. The Group has also established a
corporate website www.baofengmodern.com as a channel to
facilitate effective communication with the shareholders.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board in writing to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong at Room 504, 5/F, OfficePlus
@Sheung Wan, No. 93-103 Wing Lok Street, Sheung Wan,
Hong Kong.

Code Provision A.6.7. stipulates that non-executive Directors
and independent non-executive Directors should attend
AGM and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
the shareholders. The Company deviates from this provision
because the non-executive Directors, Mr. Sze Ching Bor and
Mr. Cheung Miu and the independent non-executive Directors,
Professor Bai Changhong, Ms. An Na and Mr. Lee Keung
did not attend the AGM held on 10 June 2014 due to their
business commitments.

Code Provision E.1.2. stipulates that the chairman of the
Board should attend the AGM. The chairman should also
invite the chairpersons of the audit, remuneration, nomination
and any other committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their
absence, he should invite another member of the committee
or failing this his duly appointed delegate, to attend. These
persons should be available to answer questions at the AGM.
The chairperson of the independent board committee (if any)
should also be available to answer questions at any general
meeting to approve a connected transaction or any other
transaction that requires independent shareholders’ approval.
Due to other business commitments, the chairpersons of
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, Mr. Lee Keung, Ms. An Na and Professor Bai
Changhong were unable to attend the AGM held on 10 June
2014.

During the financial year, there is no significant change in the
Company’s constitutional documents.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, any one or more
members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company, to
require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days
of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The same requirements and procedures also apply to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance

Appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against the Directors and
officers of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of
corporate activities of the Group has been arranged by the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. ZHENG Jingdong (B8 S &R & %)

Mr. Zheng Jingdong, aged 49, is the Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and an executive Director. He has been
a Director since 21 July 2008. Mr. Zheng has more than 10
years of experience in the slipper business in the PRC. He has
been appointed as a director of Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes
Co Ltd (“Quanzhou Baofeng”) since 28 March 2007 and as
a director of BAOF International Limited (“BAOF HK") since
21 July 2008. He has been appointed as the Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 10 May
2013.

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (R 7 # 5t %)

Mr. Leung Tsz Chung has been appointed as the executive
Director, Vice-Chairman of the Board and the authorised
representative under the Listing Rules with effect from
3 February 2015. Mr. Leung, aged 45, holds a degree of
bachelor of arts in Business Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 1991 and a degree of master in
Business Administration from the University of New South
Wales in 1996. He is qualified as a certified professional
marketer and has over 20 years of extensive experience in
business administration and marketing. Mr. Leung is the legal
representative of Bay Zu Precision Co., Ltd GLERBZ DB R

72 8]) since November 2011, whose shares are traded on Gretai
Securities Market of the Republic of China (R & 4 EE
EEH ). Mr. Leung joined 2D Material Technology Company
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as the
chief executive officer in November 2014. Mr. Leung would
focus on developing the business of material technology and
020 business for the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. SZE Ching Bor (3 5& K % &)

Mr. Sze Ching Bor, aged 67, is the founder of our Group and
he was appointed as a non-executive Director on 30 June
2010. He has been appointed as a director of BAOF HK since 8
January 2008.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEBREFK

Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (FRE F £ &)

Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel has been appointed as the non-
executive Director since 21 November 2014. Mr. Chan,
aged 41, obtained a Bachelor of International Accounting
from EFIKE (the University of Xiamen) in 1996. Mr.
Chan has extensive years of experience in various industries,
among others, manufacturing of electronic communications
devices, manufacturing of metallic products, hotels food and
beverage, advertisement, real estate, construction materials,
and corporate investment. Mr. Chan had been appointed as
the chairman of the board of directors of & &2 & (Jinying
Company) since 2004 and Jinying Company is principally
engaged in the business of manufacturing and product
development of electronic communications devices.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. AN Na (£ Z *)

Ms. An Na, aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 30 June 2010. She has been the
executive editor of B T 2 R4t (China Light Industry
Press) since 1982. She has also been a vice president of 1t &7
(mEE) F 4L (Beijing Rayli Magazine House) since 2003
at which she has been responsible for managing and co-
ordinating the publication of several fashion magazines. In
February 2015, she resigned her post and remained as a
consultant in Beijing Rayli Magazine House. She received
an editor's qualification from BB EEEEEBEEEZ
B & (State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission) in 2008. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in
Engineering with a major in the study of leather from Faitb& T
¥ BB (Northwest Institute of Light Industry) (now known as
Bk 7 Rl 5 K 22 (Shaanxi University of Science and Technology))
in 1982.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. CHEN Shaohua (FR 2 # 5 4)

Mr. Chen Shaohua was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 3 February 2015. Mr. Chen, aged
48, graduated from the Open University of China (B2
K E) (previously known as China Central Radio and TV
University (R EEE R KNE), and obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Management majoring in Accounting from Beijing
Technology and Business University (3t 5 T AE) in 2010.
He is a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (CICPA) and qualified as certified assets valuer,
certified tax agent, certified real estate valuer, certified cost
engineer and certified land valuer in the PRC. Mr. Chen is a
senior accountant and senior economist in the PRC. He has
over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, audit
and tax matters. Mr. Chen is right now the chairman of the
board of directors and legal representative of auditing firm, tax
company, asset and property valuation company in the PRC.

Professor ZHAO Jinbao (i € 1% % 12)

Professor Zhao Jinbao was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 3 February 2015. Professor Zhao, aged
51, graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology (%5 &3/& T
%K) of the PRC and obtained a bachelor of engineering
degree in Electrochemistry in 1984 and a master's degree
in Engineering in 1987. Professor Zhao further obtained a
doctor's degree in Engineering from Kyoto University in Japan
in 1996. He has been a professor of Physical Chemistry in the
Xiamen University (B F9AE2) of the PRC since August 2011.
He has over 20 years of extensive experience in research and
development in the field of engineering and chemistry and was
recruited as one of the experts in The Recruitment Program
of Global Experts (85MN=BXAA S| #EHE]), also known as
Thousand Talents Program (= A&T &) in the PRC in 2011.
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Report of the Directors

EEEHE

The Directors are pleased to present their report and the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The result of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 44 to
132,

The Board does not recommend payment of a final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the financial information of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out on page 4 of this annual
report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year are set out in notes 28 and 29 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2014, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or
sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands, amounted to approximately
RMB666,002,000. The amount of RMB666,002,000 includes
the Company’s share premium account and contributed surplus
of RMB745,961,000 in aggregate at 31 December 2014,
which may be distributed provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the financial year, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 63.1% of the total sales for the year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to 38.1%.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for 39.2% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the Group’s largest supplier included therein amounted to
21.7% of the total purchases for the year.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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DIRECTORS

The Chairman and the Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

° Executive Directors:

Mr. ZHENG Jingdong (Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer)

Mr. LEUNG Tsz Chung (Appointed as Vice-chairman on
3 February 2015)

Mr. ZHANG Aiguo (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

° Non-Executive Directors:

Mr. SZE Ching Bor
Mr. CHAN Chak Chak Daniel (Appointed on
21 November 2014)
Mr. CHEUNG Miu (Resigned on 21 November 2014)

o Independent Non-Executive Directors:

Ms. AN Na
Professor ZHAO Jinbao (Appointed on 3 February 2015)

Mr. CHEN Shaohua (Appointed on 3 February 2015)

Professor BAl Changhong (Resigned on 3 February
2015)
Mr. LEE Keung (Resigned on 3 February 2015)

Pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles, Mr. Chan Chak Chak
Daniel, who was appointed by the Board as an additional
Director in November 2014; and Mr. Leung Tsz Chung,
Mr. Chen Shaohua and Professor Zhao Jinbao, who were
appointed by the Board as additional Directors in February
2015, shall hold office until the AGM, being the first AGM
after this appointment, and shall retire and subject to re-
election from office at the AGM. Being eligible, each of them
will offer themselves for re-election.
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Pursuant to Articles 84(1) and (2), at each AGM one-third of
the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at the AGM at
least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be eligible
for re-election. Any Director appointed pursuant to Article
83(3) shall not be taken into account in determining which
particular Directors or the number of Directors who are to
retire by rotation. In accordance with Articles 84(1) and (2),
Ms. An Na shall retire from office by rotation at the AGM.
Being eligible, Ms. An Na will offer herself for re-election as an
independent non-executive Director at the AGM.

The Company has received from each of its independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and the Company considers the independent non-executive
Directors to be independent.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages
27 to 29 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract with our
Company for an initial term of 3 years (other than for Mr. Chan
Chak Chak Daniel, initial term of 2 years), which will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
(other than for Mr. Cheung Miu, terminated by not less than two
months’ notice) in writing served by either party on the other. The
details of the remuneration of each of the Directors are revealed
on notes 9 to the financial statements.

No Director has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years as required by the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Saved for transactions as disclosed in note 33 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or in existence during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive in the share capital and
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were
as follows:

Interests and short positions in ordinary shares of the
Company:

EERFETHRAERKRGRE
ARORESTHESRRKXR

R-E—NF+_-_A=+—H EFK=E
ZITBRABRARRISKEMBE EZE (E&
RESRBAEKR ([EHRBEEEG])E
XVER) M AR A R AB AR (0 R EHF HEE &L
BRARBIRERES &K E KA FE3521K
ATHEMNRRAMANEZR AR
BEEMBITAESHTEFRHNIZE
FRIASTTHE ARG MBS R
KRBT

REQAFEBERTHESERAR

Percentage of

Capacity and Number of the Company’s

Name of Director nature of interest shares held issued share capital®

EERARE BT

EsnE SO REEMEE R G # B RAF D

Mr. Sze Ching Bor Interest in controlled corporation 519,035,767(L) 51.20%

SEIRKEE PATHE 5 B B ¥ 2 233,155,792(S) 23%
Long positions in share options of the Company: RAATEBREFHEFA:

Capacity and

Name of Director nature of interest

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share capital®

Number of
options held™

EAREE BT
Espns SO RERMEE FrsBRERB " RAH DL
Mr. Zheng Jingdong Beneficial owner 2,750,000 0.27%
HRRAEE ERlEAA
Mr. Zhang Aiguo Beneficial owner 1,500,000 0.15%
SR B kA EnEREA
Note: Ff et -

(1) These represent the number of shares which will be allotted
and issued to the respective Directors upon the exercise of
the share options granted to each of them under a share
option scheme adopted on 8 January 2011 (the “Share Option
Scheme™).

(2) The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014
(i.e. 1,013,720,833 shares).

(1 LEABBESARER-_T——F—AN
BERAR BB E (IR 8l]) &
FTREENEBOEETT M A [ HE A%
RBEITHRMERE -

) A BESHERBEARTN T —N4E
+-A=+—HBWEETRH A (A
1,013,720,8330% ) fE L A% -
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(3) The letters “L” and “S” denote the person’s long and short
positions respectively in the Shares of our Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the Directors and chief executive had registered an interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was
required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8 January
2011. Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note
29 to the financial statements.

The following table discloses the outstanding share options
under the Share Option Scheme as at 31 December 2014:
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B  FEILIRISIDAMKRZALAFTAR
REMFRRIKR

R EXHEREENN R_T—HFE+_-H
=T -H BEEERTIBTHRAEER
~R R EEBEE A D  HEIR D KE
ZHRREBRREESF R BERDIFEI521F
AR IORE  ARBE LT EITAE
FETRFRINEETRASTHAER
NE| R R FTH R SRR ©

55 B RE T B
AABRR=F——F—A/\BRNBBE
AT &1 o 8 AR 4R ot &1 A 15 BOR B 75 R P
29 -

TREBER-_F-—WF+-_A=+—HE
PRt &I T8 T A i R 17 158 P A

Nurber of options
BREYA
Qutstanding Qutstanding
asat  Granted Exercised Cancelled  Forfeited asat  Exercise Exercise price
Dateofgrant ~ 1January duringthe duringthe duringthe duringthe 31December  period  pershare
Note 1) 2014 period  period  period period 014 (Note ) (HKS)
R-%-pE R-%-pE
RiHRg -f-8 TZRZT-B ikl SEOREE
Name or Category of partiipants ~~ $EARE LS8 (Wit1) WAGE BARE  BAGE  BREE  BARM  ERGR (D) (1)
Executive Directors Yz
Theng Jingdong #2% 3080011 2,750,000 - - - - Q75000 A 118
Thang Aiguo 58 3080011 1,500,000 - - - - 1,500000 A 118
Sub-total st 4,250,000 - - - - 4250000
Employees of the Group in aggregate  A£BES AL
30/8/2011 6,000,000 - - - - 6,000,000 A 1.18
30/8/2011 3,700,000 - - - (3,700,000) - B 1.18
Sub-total Nt 9,700,000 - - - (37000000 6,000,000
Total b 13,950,000 = = - (3,700,000 10,250,000
Notes: BfaE -
1. The closing price of the Company’s shares immediately before 1. KA RSEEEESE T ——F

the date of grant on 30 August 2011 was HK$1.17.

NA=Z+HAMETER1178TT

HIERFE —T—FFH
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2, The respective exercise periods of the share options granted
are as follows:

A: From 30 August 2012 to 29 August 2016;

B: From 30 August 2014 to 29 August 2016.

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

3. Exercise conditions:

(i) Provided always that a grantee of share options shall
remain as a Director or an employee of the Company
or its subsidiaries, at the time of exercise of his or her
share options;

(i) Performance target for share options with exercise
period A: the Company’s Profit (as defined below)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is higher than
RMB150,000,000;

(iii) Performance target for share options with exercise
period B: the Company’s Profit for the year ended 31
December 2013 is higher than RMB230,000,000.

“Profit” is defined as the Company’s consolidated net profit
attributable to owners of the Company as shown in the
audited accountant’s report for the corresponding fiscal year,
excluding the impact of (i) after- tax employee expenses arising
from the grant of the share options and (i) non-operating
gains and losses.

4. The number and/or exercise price of the options may be
subject to adjustments in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other changes in the Company’s share capital.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors’ and chief
executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures” and “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any of the Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

2. B RESBITERNT

A: —E——_F#NA=t+HEZ=Z
*ﬁiﬂﬂ‘+ﬂa'
B: —mHENA=+HEZZ

/\E)\H_JHLEI °

ZEBRENEBERAEREBHER
ETE R L

3. TTIE 151

(i) B A A AR A BT T {0 L BB AR A B
MERESHIANRHEMMER
AES

(i) ATTIEHARB BB IR - AR
AEE-TE——F+=ZA=1+—
HEFENRMN(ERRTX)
it i@ A R #150,000,0007T :

(i) BITFEHEIERENENEEZ:
RAARBE-_ZT—=%+=A
=+t HIEFEMNRFBBAR
#230,000,0007T

Dafl] REAHEVREELEZES
B3RS FT R AN R BIHEA AR AR B4R
EFFE - PEFBN)EE L ERES B
Mg R BB M) ERL BN
@,

4. BRENHER RTEEREELR
S AT AR B 1T S A A RS HH IR LA B
B T UAE R -

EEREROIEFNLZH

FREXTEEREBITERABREN M
FAM D RIEST D AR | & [ R
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BB ARRENTFRRNF AR ERERE
fa] A] 35 3B WA N 2 B AR 1) Sk (B - JE I 0 e
A IMEITE RSN MARR] R
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2014, the following interests and short
positions of 5% or more of the issued share capital and
share options of the Company were recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to

Section 336 of the SFO:

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

Report of the Directors

EEEHE

FERRREMALRESRE
EROTNEERIXR

RZEBE—NFE+_F=+—HB R TEQ
A B BITIRA R EEAR S % ok LA EmRE RS &
KBRARNRRAREES KA EIEGE
336K TFEMER S M :

E%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ¢%%§&%
B

Percentage of the
Company's issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest Number of shares share capital™
EARTC LT
£ SR RERMEE B E B & =Rl AL
Mr. Sze Ching Bor Interest in controlled corporation 519,035,767 (L) 51.20%
LEREED Pz EE R 233,155,792 (5) 23%
Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping @ Spousal interest 519,035,767 (L) 51.20%
RE L+ [ 233,155,792 (S) 23%
Best Mark International Limited Beneficial owner/Other 473,876,157 (L) 46.75%
ExBEEA/ LA 233,155,792 (5) 23%
Ms. Lin Weihuan @ Interest in controlled corporation 233,155,792 (L) 23%
Lin WeihuanZ £© iRl 7% B M)
Total Shine Investments Limited @ Beneficial owner 233,155,792 (L) 23%
ERBEAA
RBS AA Holdings (UK) Limited @ Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
Pt s E B M s
CITIC Capital China Mezzanine Fund Limited ~ Beneficial owner 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
(“CITIC Capital”) ExBEBA
Multifield International Limited © Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
Pz slE B RS
CITIC Capital Investment Holdings Limited ©® Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
P sE B MR
CITIC Capital Holdings Limited 7 Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%

PEERERBERAA

Fis B ER

HigRY —T—IEFR
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Percentage of the
Company'’s issued

Name Capacity and nature of interest Number of shares share capital™

EARAC LT

£ SR RERME BB & =Rl AL

CITIC Limited @ Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
FERERHER AR P s B RS

Warlord Investment Corporation © Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
gl el 4y

The Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. 10 Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
Pzl B M s

RBS Holdings N.V. " Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
FrizEslE B MR

RFS Holdings B.V. 2 Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
Frizsls B MR

The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc. Interest in controlled corporation 85,325,500 (L) 8.42%
P& £ B R s

Ms. Ming Chu ¥ Interest in controlled corporation 66,135,247 (L) 6.52%
Bk L9 Pzl s B MR

Star Sky Entertainment Group Limited ¥ Beneficial owner 66,135,247 (L) 6.52%

Notes:

Fff ot -

(1) Mr. Sze Ching Bor (“Mr. Sze"”) is deemed to be interested (1)
in the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) held by Best
Mark International Limited (“Best Mark”) and Capital Vision
International Limited (“Capital Vision”). Best Mark and Capital
Vision are wholly owned and controlled by Mr. Sze and are
interested in 473,876,157 Shares and 45,159,610 shares
respectively, representing approximately 46.75% and 4.45%,
respectively of the issued share capital of the Company. Best
Mark granted an option to Total Shine Investments Limited to
acquire 233,155,792 shares in aggregate, representing 23% of
the issued capital of the Company.

(2) Ms. Tsang Shuk Ping, the spouse of Mr. Sze, is deemed to be (2)
interested in Mr. Sze's interests in the Company.
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(10)

(1)

Ms. Lin Weihuan (“Ms. Lin") is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Total Shine Investments Limited (“Total Shine”).
Total Shine is wholly owned and controlled by Ms. Lin and
obtained an option granted by Best Mark entitling it to acquire
233,155,792 Shares.

RBS AA Holdings (UK) Limited owns 33.3% of CITIC Capital
China Mezzanine Fund Limited (“CITIC Capital”). Accordingly,
RBS AA Holdings (UK) Limited is deemed to be interested in
the Shares in which CITIC Capital is interested for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

Multifield International Limited owns 33.3% of CITIC Capital
and accordingly is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which CITIC Capital is interested for the purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

CITIC Capital Investment Holdings Limited wholly owns
Multifield International Limited and is deemed to be interested
in the Shares in which Multifield International Limited is
interested for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

CITIC Capital Holdings Limited wholly owns CITIC Capital
Investment Holdings Limited and is deemed to be interested in
the Shares in which CITIC Capital Investment Holdings Limited
is interested for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

CITIC Limited owns 55% of CITIC Capital Holdings Limited and
is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which CITIC Capital
Holdings Limited is interested for the purpose of Part XV of the
SFO.

Warlord Investment Corporation owns 40% of the
shareholding interests in CITIC Capital Holdings Limited.
Accordingly it is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which CITIC Capital Holdings Limited is interested for the
purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

The Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. owns 33.3% of CITIC Capital
and accordingly is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which CITIC Capital is interested for the purpose of Part XV of
the SFO.

RBS Holdings N.V. wholly owns The Royal Bank of Scotland
N.V.,, it is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which The
Royal Bank of Scotland N.V. is interested for the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO.

B iy
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(12)  The RFS Holdings B.V. wholly owns RBS Holdings N.V., it is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which RBS Holdings
N.V. is interested for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

(13)  The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc. owns 97.7% of RFS
Holdings B.V., it is deemed to be interested in the Shares in
which RFS Holdings B.V. is interested for the purpose of Part
XV of the SFO.

(14)  Ms. Ming Chu ("Ms. Ming”) is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by Star Sky Entertainment Group Limited (”Star
Sky"”). Star Sky is wholly owned and controlled by Ms. Ming.
Star Sky is interested in a warrant to subscribe for 36,922,649
Shares and a convertible note to convert into 29,212,598
Shares.

(15)  The percentage has been adjusted based on the total number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2014.
(i.e. 1,013,720,833 shares).

(16)  The letters “L” and “S" denotes the person’s long and short
position respectively in the Shares of our Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares and debentures” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transaction was entered into or in existence
during the year. The related party transactions disclosed
in note 33 to the financial statements do not fall under
the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing
connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company'’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

(12)  The RFS Holdings B.V.% & # 5 RBS
Holdings N.V.' RiK#E & K HI & (&6 5
XVEL 4R A FARBS Holdings N.V.1E A
R IR R A s

(13)  The Royal Bank of Scotland Group plc.
#EERFS Holdings B.V.K197.7 %% 1 - 1R
153 75 N BB R B S5 XVER 2 1R B ARFS
Holdings B.V.¥E 5 #& 2 00 iR 10 R #E A 1

N
ZS o

iy

(14)  BAZkZ L ([BAZ 1) 35 "R Star Sky
Entertainment Group Limited ([Star
Sky 1) 5B BIAX {5 7 7 5 #E % © Star Sky
R 2EHA LIEH o Star SkyR Al
RME36,922,6490% A% 15 #Y R AR #E 7 K 7]
K 29,212,598% AR {7 #Y A #2 AR E 1%
hEAER-

(15) ZBESHECRBEAAFN-Z—M4E
+-BA=+—HBE2BTRMES (A
1,013,720,8330% ) {EHH s %8 -

(16) FEILIKRIS]DHIKRZALIFA
DA IF R RIAR -

BEXHEEEN R_ZE—NFE+_-A
=+—H BRTEESFNEXEERE
ZITBRABRKRD REERG RESHFTH
ERRAR] —HNARRBEEREETT
BABIN BEEE A A TR AR A [R5 2k
ARG P EEBRBEESFRBEEGE
336K BRI E SR IA R ©

BEXS

FRLET LS FEERNBERS - M5
R EBARBENEEALRZAIF LT
RAIFBIAAB IR EN [BERX S ] 3 [

RENRRERE
RIEAS A B A IR 0 A BB R B A
M RARERE ARZELFASAFE
BATRR AN EERI25%
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group’s emolument policies are based on the merit,
qualifications and competence of individual employees and are
reviewed by the remuneration committee periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee and are decided by the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics.

The Company adopted a share option scheme to motivate
and reward its Directors and eligible employees. Details of the
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the financial
statements

AUDITOR

Pan-China (H.K.) CPA Limited retire and a resolution for their
re-appointment as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

ZHENG Jingdong
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B &% AR S

LAN-C/INA

To the shareholders of Baofeng Modern International
Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 44 to 132, which comprise
the consolidated and Company’s statements of financial
position as at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED cerified pubiic Accountants
AR (BB EHHAARSTT

HE IR EERZERARQRICRRER
(RESHESEMALZBRAR])

EECDERFMEETINEFH B LR
BRZERAERAR(TERAR D) REWBA
B AEIEER NGV HRE  B1F
R-ZE—ME+-F=+—HBWEAED
AMBERAREBEZALFENLEAE
mEEMEERER FREEREER KR
BEERER ULRTESHHREBMERH
b2 E A -
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BENAEFA R EREKRSHENEES
78 4 0 B R B 75 ¥R 5 22 Rl S BB 2 R G 1D
MEBERTE REEEAANKEMBR
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SEAUBRBEFETREERRHE  LHRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2014, and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

PAN-CHINA (H.K.) CPA LIMITED
Certified Public Accountants

Wong Ho Yuen, Gary

Practicing Certificate Number P01316

11/F., Hong Kong Trade Centre,
161-167 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

25 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

GEBREEREMEE KRS X

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
kA ARET T ARKETIT
REVENUE Wz 6 196,773 624,122
Cost of sales HER AN (177,720) (437,185)
GROSS PROFIT ES 19,053 186,937
Other net income and gains H ALK A R i 25558 6 13,050 5,786
Selling and distribution expenses HE R D MY (13,812) (48,748)
General and administrative expenses —MRRITHF S (35,936) (61,613)
Finance costs A Ak R 7 (8,549) (4,621)
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial liabilities & A (Bt ABz= 2
at fair value through profit or loss e@MEBEZATE
(BR),/ W= 25 (4,019) 17,116
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREL AT (E518), B R 8 (30,213) 94,857
Income tax expense FT{SHi 2 11 (939) (26,979)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RATEEAELER
AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (B1E), B RERN
(EXPENSE)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR 2HE(EAX) WABE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY 12 (31,152) 67,878
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE SR (E8)BF 14
— Basic (RMB) —ER(ARE) (0.03) 0.07
— Diluted (RMB) —EE(ARE) N/A R N/A 713 A

Details of the dividends are disclosed in note 13 to the

REFBRENZE P BEHRRMEI3

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2014 R-ZE—MWMFE+_-_HA=+—H

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —T—=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz ARETTT ANREFTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - = MR 15 95,214 103,010
Prepaid lease payments EfHEE 16 34,330 35,175
129,544 138,185
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories EN 18 30,967 32,417
Trade and bills receivables FEULE 5 BR 3 % B I 22 4 19 41,533 62,283
Prepayments, deposits and other B FXIE - 12 & & E b fEURFIR
receivables 20 14,034 39,767
Income tax recoverable AT Y [E PR S AR 2,151 =
Pledged deposits BEREFER 21 5,696 5,546
Cash and bank balances H& RIRTTAR 21 1,148,881 1,173,494
1,243,262 1,313,507
CURRENT LIABILITIES mEEE
Trade and bills payables B8 SRR R EN BT 22 48,297 35,116
Deposits received, other payables Uiz $ - H1th B~ I8 K
and accruals fEsTE B 23 51,051 32,350
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 2R ITEE 24 121,884 142,000
Convertible notes IR E 5 25 53,123 79,946
Warrants RIS 25 4,137 3,019
Amount due to a director FEN—ZEE=FIE 26 - 33,440
Income tax payable T FrSHi I8 - 355
278,492 326,226
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFRE 964,770 987,281
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERABARE
LIABILITIES 1,094,314 1,125,466
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBEE
Deferred tax liability RIEFIAEE 27 3,071 3,071
NET ASSETS BEEFE 1,091,243 1,122,395
BERE —T-NUFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

mE B RRR

As at 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—WMFE+_-_HA=1+—H

2014 2013
—E—mF —E—=%F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K ARET T AREETIT

EQUITY Lo
Share capital f% 7 28 67,258 67,258
Reserves E= 30(a) 1,023,985 1,055,137
TOTAL EQUITY ERaE 1,091,243 1,122,395

The consolidated financial statements on pages 44 to 132
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 25 March 2015 and signed on its behalf by:

ZHENG Jingdong
B RR
Director

BF

FLUEINENGATERREETSR

—_E—ARF=A=-1+HH

%o WHA FATRERR

LEUNG Tsz Chung
RF 4
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MEERBE X

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

Statutory Exchange  Capital ~ Share
Share  Share Contributed  surplus fluctuation redemption  options  Retained Total Total
capital  premium  surplus fund  reserve  reserve  reseve  profits  reserves  equity
iERS EXRE EARE
Bx RitER RERe MEe  RE BE BREEE REEN RESE RREE
Notes RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMB'OC0  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Wi ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETR ARETR
(note 28) (note 3003)) (note 30&)) (note 303))
(W) (Ha306) (W06 (Wi300))
At 1 January 2013 W-E-=E-f-H 67466 353205 141376 87,576 155 316 7259 399250 989,137 1,0%,603
Profit and total comprehensive income for the EH R 2 A A28
ear - - - - - - - 67818 61818 67878
Repurchase and cancelation of shares B REERG 2 (08  @20) - - - 208 - 09 Q0 (479)
Fquitysetled share option arangements  bkE& Bt BRER S Vi - - - - - - B4y 388 39 39
Transfr to statutory surpus fund ERTITRERNES - - - 1M - - - (190 = =
At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R=E-=%+ZF=1-AR
“5-mE-f-A 67258 350935 141376 95478 155 54 3770 462,899 1,055,137 1,122,395
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the ERERRZEFREE
year - - - - - - - (3115)  (11%)  (31,152)
Fquitysetted share option amangements  bRIELEHBRER S 2 - - - - - - @) 8 - -
At 31 December 2014 HoE-META=1-A 67258 350935 141376 95478 155 524 2879 432638 1,023,985 1,091,243
BERE —T-TFFHR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ ==

—mFE+-A=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—E—-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR®ET T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHMEBRENE
ACTIVITIES
(Loss)/profit before tax ARl (EE), %1 (30,213) 94,857
Adjustments for: TN B IEFE -
Interest income F B A (4,528) (4,147)
Interest expenses B 8,549 4,621
Depreciation e 10,339 9,558
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments RN HEe#E 845 845
Loss on disposals of items of property, plant EE¥E &= M &RE
and equipment HEEE 698 237
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment (BtmE), FHREEKREZ S
loss on trade receivables RN ZBIEEE (19) 1,162
Write-down of inventories FE MU 411 7,805
Equity-settled share option expense DA NS HE 4 B Y B A R A = - 392
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial liabilities BRATETABEZESHE
at fair value through profit or loss Bz AT EBL (W) 4,019 (17,116)
Operating cash flow before changes in B R S BB R 2 &
working capital E/fﬁ (9,899) 98,220
Decrease in inventories FE )369\ 1,039 34,208
Decrease in trade and bills receivables FEULE 5 BR 3 % PR W = 45 20,769 79,137
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits i‘EHIT IE e &k H AR
and other receivables IR A () 25,733 (10,372)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FEfTE 5 IR B R IR
bills payables mn/Cra) 13,181 (52,522)
Increase/(decrease) in deposits received, Bz e - HtEAFRIE KR
other payables and accruals FESTERE MOk ) 18,701 (26,861)
Cash generated from operations REMSIRE 69,524 121,810
Interest received = EESS 4,528 4,141
PRC taxes paid B E R IE (3.445) (51,000)
Net cash flows from operating activities K& EFBHERSTREFE 70,607 74,951
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYE BHENMKEEER
equipment (3,958) (3,487)
Proceeds from disposals of items of property, HEYZE  BHENREER
plant and equipment FriSsI8 717 686
Increase in pledged deposits B 7 sRIE (150) (5,476)
Net cash flows used in investing BRETBFTARESREFE
activities (3,391) (8,277)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERTMER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

2014 2013
—Z2-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR TIT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETBHRBRERE

ACTIVITIES
Repayment of convertible notes BEARRER (29,724) (56,389)
New bank loans HILRITER 179,553 150,441
Repayments of bank loans BERRITERK (199,669) (49,173)
Advance from a director BEEBX - 53,320
Repayment to a director BEEENIE (33,440) (19,880)
Repurchase of shares Al e - (2,478)
Interest paid BFE (8,549) (4,621)
Net cash flows (used in)/from financing @& EE(FTA) FFBHEE

activities MEFEE (91,829) 71,220
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RE&RBESZEWORL),

CASH EQUIVALENTS N R 5 (24,613) 137,894
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#I8 & MIR&EEY) 1,173,494 1,035,600
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF S XREBE&RESEEY

YEAR 1,148,881 1,173,494
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERREZEYERIT

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTASER 1,148,881 1,173,494

HIERE —T—OFFR
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Statement of Financial Position

B3R &

As at 31 December 2014 R-—ZE—WMFE+_-_HA=1+—H

2014 2013
—F-mFE T =F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
kA AR¥ T AREETIT
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR RIEE 17 888,431 870,130
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other BNFE Bk
receivables H b e I8 20 - 499
Cash and bank balances He MIRTT4S 84 21 148 816
148 1,315
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Deposits received, other payables and B2 Ui % - H b fE FUIE &
accruals fEETE 23 20,436 2,076
Amounts due to subsidiaries RN Ee ] 17 74,220 2,509
Convertible notes Al =R 25 53,123 79,946
Warrants SRR E S 25 4,137 3,019
Amount due to a director FENEEIE 26 = 32,245
151,916 119,795
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REEEFEE (151,768) (118,480)
NET ASSETS EEFE 736,663 751,650
EQUITY Ea
Share capital f& s 28 67,258 67,258
Reserves i 30(b) 669,405 684,392
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 736,663 751,650

ZHENG Jingdong

LEUNG Tsz Chung

BMER 7 H
Director Director
Ex 1
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Baofeng Modern International Holdings Company
Limited (“the Company”) is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The address of
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company as disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section of the annual report. The shares of the Company
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 28
January 2011 (the “Listing Date").

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
RMB, which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
immediate holding company and the ultimate holding
company of the Company is Best Mark International
Limited (“Best Mark”), which was incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. Its ultimate controlling party is Mr.
Sze Ching Bor.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

The Group has applied new and revised IFRSs, which
include IFRS(s), International Accounting Standards
("IAS(s)”) and Interpretation (“Int”), issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) for
the first time in the current year:

Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities
IFRS 12 and IAS 27

Amendments to IAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-
Financial Assets

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation
of Hedge Accounting

[FRIC*-Int 21 Levies

Amendments to IAS 36

Amendments to IAS 39

* IFRIC represents the International Financial Reporting
Standards Interpretation Committee
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

52

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

The application of the new and revised IFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new
and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

IFRS 9

IFRS 14

IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 11
Amendments to IAS 1
Amendments to IAS 16

and IAS 38

Amendments to IAS 16
and 1AS 41

Amendments to IAS 19

Amendments to IAS 27

Amendments to IFRS 10
and I1AS 28

Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 28

Amendments to [FRSs

Amendments to [FRSs

Amendments to [FRSs

Financial Instruments'
Regulatory Deferral Accounts?
Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in
Joint Operations®
Disclosure Initiative*

Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation®

Agriculture - Bearer Plants®

Defined Benefit Plans — Employee
Contribution*

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements®

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Investments Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2010-2012 Cycle®

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2011-2013 Cycle*

Annual Improvements to IFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle

Baofeng Modern Annual Report 2014
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (continued)

ie Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018, with earlier application permitted.

2 Effective for first annual IFRS financial statements
beginning on or after 1 January 2016, with earlier
application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017, with earlier application permitted.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014, with earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016, with earlier application permitted.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2014, with limited exceptions. Earlier application is
permitted.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised IFRSs upon initial
application but is not yet in a position to state whether
these new and revised IFRSs would have a significant
impact on its results of operations and financial position.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
convertible notes and warrants which are measured
at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

54

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that
are within the scope of IAS 17, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in IAS 2 or value in use in IAS
36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

- has power over the investee;

—  is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

- has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement
of financial position of the Company at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company as the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes. Revenue from the sale of goods is
recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are
satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

—  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the
time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognised
as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is
recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-
line basis, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic
benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Leasehold land and building (continued)

Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between
the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease. To the extent the allocation of
the lease payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land that is accounted for as an operating
lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is
amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items, are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests
as appropriate).

Retirement benefit cost

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are recognised as an
expense as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’'s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The subsidiary is required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to defined
contribution housing, medical and other benefit plans
organised by the PRC government. The PRC government
undertakes to assume the benefit obligations of all
existing and retired employees under these plans.
Contributions to these plans by the Group are expensed
as incurred. The Group has no further obligations for
benefits for their qualified employees under these plans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently
payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to
the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, as the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development
for production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period is included as part of
costs of buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Research and development costs (continued)

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated
statement of financial position comprise cash at banks
and on hand and short-term deposits with a maturity of
three months or less. For the purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are loans and receivables.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits and cash and bank balances are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets
are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial
asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets have been affected.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

—  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

- it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

—  disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in
the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past
the average credit period of three months, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at
the financial asset's original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables, where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into either
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL") or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liabilities are either held for trading or those
designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

— it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term; or

— on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

— it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

—  such designation eliminates or significantly reduces
a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise; or

—  the financial liability forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which
is managed and its performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group’s
documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

— it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 permits the
entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be
designated as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in note 36.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills
payables, deposits received, other payables and accruals,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and amount due to a
director are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis other than those financial liabilities classified as at
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net
gains or losses.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by
the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes entitle the note holder to convert the
note into equity instruments, other than into a fixed
number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion
price, are regarded as combined instruments consist of a
liability and a derivative component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Convertible notes (continued)

On initial recognition, the convertible notes with the
derivative component as a whole are designated as
financial liabilities at FVTPL. The entire convertible notes
are initially recognised at fair value on the date of
issue and are subsequently measured at fair value until
extinguished on conversion or redemption. Changes
in the fair value of the entire convertible notes are
recognised in the profit or loss as they arise. Interest on
convertible notes designated as financial liabilities at
FVTPL is included in the fair value gain or loss for that
period. Upon conversion of the convertible notes, the fair
value of the convertible notes converted is reclassified to
equity.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue
of the convertible notes designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised immediately in the profit or loss.

Warrants

Warrants which meet the definition of a derivative are
initially recognised at fair value at initial recognition and
are subsequently measured at fair value. Changes in
the fair value of warrants are recognised in the income
statement as they arise.

3.

HIERE —T—OFFR

TESTBRE)

ERMIRE)
ABRKREE (F)

1) R TTﬁHXZ‘TTEgIEI@T_HEI
BEHHEBEBEBWIETE BIEATFET AR
mMERAaE 2T RRERNE
TEHRATFEVSER WEAFE
BITRETS EERAEBRKELNT
WiH R - 2HTBRREBENATE
SHREHAREESABR BT
BEAFEFABENEBREENR]
BREENFE ST AZBRNAFE
BlRmkEE - IHRERESE R
% BERFEEFOEAER-

HEERFRBRBETRAFEFTABRRHN
TREBENATRREEZZKA A
IR AE 1R 25 I BERR o

RRER
HAPTESBT AR RN RBEET
SWRHEATERA LEATE
AT M B o RIRER A FEE
NSRS S

69



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

70

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Warrants (continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
continues to recognise the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement and recognises an associated
liability. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
is recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For grants of share options that are conditional upon
satisfying specified vesting conditions, the fair value of
services received is determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the date of grant and is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
with a corresponding increase in share options reserve.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate, with
a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are forfeited
after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Impairment losses on assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss. Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions about the amounts of assets, liabilities,
that are not readily apparent for other sources. The
estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgements, apart from
those involving estimations (see below), that the directors
of the Company have made in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised and
disclosures made in the consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Classification between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making
that judgement. Investment property is a property held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore,
the Group considers whether a property generates
cash flows largely independently of the other assets
held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion
that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
and another portion that is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold
separately, the property is an investment property only
if an insignificant portion is held for use in the supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Judgement is made on an individual property basis to
determine whether ancillary services are so significant
that a property does not qualify as an investment

property.

Certain properties of the Group comprise a portion that
is held to earn rentals and another portion that is held
for use in the supply of goods and for administrative
purposes. As the portion that is held to earn rentals is
not significant and could not be sold separately and the
portion that is held for use in supply of goods and for
administrative purposes is significant, the properties are
not classified as investment properties.

Withholding taxes arising from the distributions
of dividends

The Group's determination as to whether to accrue for
withholding taxes from the distribution of dividends from
a subsidiary in the PRC according to the relevant tax
jurisdiction is subject to judgement on the timing of the
payment of the dividend, where the Group considered
that if it is probable that the profits of the subsidiary in
the PRC will not be distributed in the foreseeable future,
then no withholding taxes should be provided.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

Building

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase
consideration as detailed in note 15, certain of the
Group’s rights to use of the building was not granted
formal titles from the relevant government authorities.
The directors of the Company are of the opinions that
the risks and rewards of using these assets have been
transferred to the Group and the absence of formal titles
to this building does not impair the value of the relevant
properties to the Group.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of resulting in a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to the ones previously estimated,
it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant
and equipment (continued)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for property, plant and equipment at the end
of each reporting period. Property, plant and equipment
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or
a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less
costs to sell is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment was approximately
RMB95,214,000 (2013: RMB103,010,000).

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses. These estimates are based on the
current market conditions and the historical experience
of selling merchandise of a similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer
taste or competitor actions. The Group reassesses these
estimates at the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of inventories was
approximately RMB30,967,000, net of allowance for
write-down inventories approximately RMB8,216,000
(2013: RMB32,417,000 with allowance for write-down of
RMB7,805,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4., ERSHHHRATTITEEE
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION EFEREFEE)

UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment allowances for trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment allowances for
trade and other receivables by assessing the recoverability
based on credit history and prevailing market conditions.
This requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Allowances are applied to trade and other receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be collectible. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of trade and
other receivables and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed. The Group
reassesses the impairment allowances at the end of the
reporting period.

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of trade
and bills receivables was approximately RMB41,533,000
(2013: RMB62,283,000), net of allowance for
doubtful debt of approximately RMB1,143,000 (2013:
RMB1,162,000).

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of other
receivables were approximately RMB2,024,000 (2013:
RMB12,939,000).

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies.
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of convertible notes and warrants

As described in note 25 to the consolidated financial
statements, the convertible notes and warrants are
designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL. The Group
engaged an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers to assist in determining the fair value of
convertible notes and warrants. The fair value of the
convertible notes and warrants are determined using the
binomial model. The significant inputs into the model
included risk-free interest rate, conversion price/exercise
price, stock price, discount rate, expected volatility,
expected life and expected dividend yields. When the
actual results of the inputs differ from management’s
estimate, it will have an impact on the fair value gain
or loss and the fair value of the convertible notes and
warrants.

Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled
transactions with employees by reference to the fair value
of the equity instruments at the date which they are
granted. Estimating fair value for share-based payment
transactions requires determining the most appropriate
valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and
conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determining the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share options,
volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions
about them. The assumptions and models used for
estimating the fair value for share-based payments are
disclosed in note 29.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"),
for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focuses on types of goods or
services delivered or provided. Specifically, the Group’s
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

(@) the Boree branded products segment manufactures
and trades Boree branded slippers, sandals and
casual footwear (“Boree Products”);

(b) the Baofeng branded products segment manufactures
and trades Baofeng branded slippers (“Baofeng
Products”);

(c) the Brand Licensee Business segment manufactures
and trades licensed slippers (“Brand Licensee
Business”); and

(d) the Original Equipment Manufacturer (“OEM")
segment produces slippers for branding and resale
by others.

CODM monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment result, which is a measure of adjusted result
before tax.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described in
note 3. The segment profit or loss represents the profit
earned by or loss from each segment without allocation
of interest income, other unallocated net income and
gains, fair value (loss)/gain on financial liabilities at FVTPL,
finance costs as well as corporate and other unallocated
expenses. Segment assets exclude property, plant and
equipment, prepaid lease payments, raw materials, work
in progress, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
income tax recoverable, pledged deposits and cash and
bank balances as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Segment liabilities exclude trade and bills payables,
certain other payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank
borrowings, convertible notes, warrants, amount due to
a director and income tax payable as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. DEERE)
Segment revenues and results DEERFEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AR B3] 237 M &2 D 2R E D B A

results by reportable and operating segment.

Year ended 31 December 2014

SEWE N EEDH -

BE_Z-mF+=A=+—H

LFFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
R
BEABER BEBREER mMER wE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR TR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Segment revenue
Sales to external customers

Segment results

Reconciliation:

Interest income

Other unallocated net
income and gains

Corporate and other
unallocated expenses

Fair value loss on financial
liabilities at FVTPL

Finance costs

Loss before tax

pal- L6
FSNREFHE

DR

Ez): 3

FEBHA

Hitn R DR FRA R
Weza
ERFEMRDERH
X

BATHER ABSZ
TRBECAFE
8%

BB

BR 7t AT S 18

51,488 847 779 143,659 196,773

(16,832) (438) (290) 18,419 859

4,528
8,522

(31,554)

(4,019)

(8,549)

(30,213)

HigRY —T—IEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

5. oEERE

Segment revenues and results (continued) ISR EE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-ZE—=F+=-H=+—H
ILFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
X
EABER BERER SEES ks
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
Segment revenue a6
Sales to external customers [FIINRARFEIEE 224,470 90,888 13,928 294,836 624,122
Segment results o EEE 66,758 27,331 (5,588) 48,526 137,027
Reconciliation: #k -
Interest income FLBUA 4,141
Other unallocated net HARD B FBAR 1,645
income and gains Wz
Corporate and other 3 R E A RS B R (60,451)
unallocated expenses 53
Fair value gain on financial RAFEFT ABZHZ 17,116
liabilities at FVTPL ERAEEZATE
Wz
Finance costs BE R AR (4,621)
Profit before tax B %53 A g ) 94,857
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. ZEERGE)

Segment assets and liabilities STHEEREE

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT ABIEA 25 R &E D EE 5D B A
liabilities by reportable and operating segment: EEEENBENT

Year ended 31 December 2014

BE_Z-mF+=A=+—H

LFFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
B
BEARER BEREER mEEK HE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

Segment assets STHEE 2,318 - - 51,045 53,363
Reconciliation: #Hk -
Corporate and other 3% REMAR DB

unallocated assets BE 1,319,443
Total assets BERE 1,372,806
Segment liabilities AEEE 850 850 - 15,777 17,477
Reconciliation: E)
Corporate and other ¥ REAMK DA

unallocated liabilities 8fE 264,086
Total liabilities BiEEHE 281,563

HigRY —T—IEFR
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. oEbERE
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) PEHEEREE(E)
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE=-Z—=%+=H=+—H
ILFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
X
BEABER BEEER @EED Rk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTE ARB®TRT ARETIT ARETR

Segment assets PEEE 9,610 1,787 15,509 49,548 76,454
Reconciliation: HiE
Corporate and other 1 RHEAMK DB

unallocated assets BE 1,375,238
Total assets BERE 1,451,692
Segment liabilities PEEE 1,100 1,100 2,500 = 4,700
Reconciliation: HiE
Corporate and other 3 RHEAMK DB

unallocated liabilities BE 324,597
Total liabilities BlEESE 329,297
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. TEPER(E)
Other segment information B o EpER
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE=—E=—NME+=-HB=+—H
IEFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
R
BEAEER BEEEER Y HEg
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARB¥TRT AR¥Tn AR%®Tn AR%®Tr ARET:R
Impairment loss on trade EWE K2
receivables REEE 934 - 12 197 1,143
Write-down of inventories 12 & 8,216 = = = 8,216
9,359
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-F-—=f+t=-A=t-—H
IEFE
Brand
Boree Baofeng Licensee
Products Products Business OEM Total
i
BEARER BREREER e HBER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETR
Impairment loss on trade EWE HERZ
receivables EEEE 1,093 = 12 57 1,162
Write-down of inventories 12 & U 7,805 - - = 7,805
8,967
BigEY —B-NEER 83
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

DEER (&
ih & & K
(a) REIREFH Kz
2014 2013
—ZT-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBTIT

PRC (principal place of operations) R (EELEMME)
United States of America EE

South America EE

Europe M

South East Asia X

Other countries HEbER

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

62,064 435,240
122,753 170,070
4,400 3,634
4,254 1,747
1,883 8,073
1,419 5,358
196,773 624,122

A EWSEEREREPUES
ﬁ_j\ o

(b) ¥FHBEE

2014 2013
—E-mF —FT—=
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARETT

PRC (principal place of operations) PR (EEEE )

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:

129,498 138,114

AEFRBEEERTIENEE

EE5 -

FEEFMNER
RIEEEE  REFFP 2 RS EARE
BE/AHEFE10% A EENMT ¢

2014 2013
—EB-mFE  —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Customer A ZEA

The Group’s major customers are in the OEM segment.
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REVENUE, OTHER NET INCOME AND

GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other net income and gains is as

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

mE M BRRWE

W AR B X5 HE
HRERELRESTHRENEEEm

LA o

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

6. Wik~ bR W iFEE

RE

Yoa ~ E Ao WA Ko Mo 25 0% BB A 0 AT 10

follows: N
2014 2013
—E-mF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET AREFIT
Revenue U 2=
Manufacture and sale of goods HEENMHEE M 196,773 624,122
Other net income and gains Hy A R U2 5 58
Interest income FIBHBA 4,528 4,141
Sales of scrap material HERER 2,239 450
Sales of semi-products SHE ¥R 1,076 -
Rental income e WA 322 243
Subsidy income* @ AR U A * 4,323 905
Others HAth 562 47
13,050 5,786

* There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies

* YEEEZSMAMNREXGEX

relating to these subsidies. FANEI ©

FINANCE COSTS 7. MERK
2014 2013
—E2-nmE —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Interest on bank loans repayable AR A FNEZERIR

within five years BERHE 8,549 4,621

HigRY —T—IEFR
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(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. KrBiml(E&1R) IHEF

The Group's (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after AREENBRBEN(ER) SMEM
charging/(crediting): B (GEA):
2014 2013
—E—-NF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®ET T
Cost of inventories sold* BEEFEERA* 177,309 429,380
Depreciation* HrE* 10,339 9,558
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments  TE{f78 & # 845 845
Minimum lease payments under operating #81% + ] & A& F 4L & FH 4
leases in respect of land and buildings*  H)&IEME S F* 7,671 7,367
Employee benefit expenses (including EERIFAS(BEES
directors’ remuneration — note 9)*: B & — Fd5E9) *
Wages and salaries TENSS 46,093 70,537
Equity-settled share option expense LA s e 45 & 0 B A 4
52 - 392
Staff welfares EE & 853 2,255
Contributions to retirement benefits RIREFETH B
schemes 4,544 8,823
51,490 82,007
Auditors’ remuneration 1% B AT B <& 1,590 1,504
(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment (@) /sH12EUE 5 B8R 7R
loss on trade receivables EEE (19) 1,162
Write-down of inventories FE MR 41 7,805
Loss on disposals of items of property, HEYE  MENREEB
plant and equipment B8 698 237
Foreign exchange differences, net HNE Z= FH 3 ER 429 1,446
Research and development costs** B AR AN * * 2,733 2,145
*  The cost of inventories sold for the year ended 31 *  HEZZE-MF+—A=t+—HIt
December 2014 includes approximately RMB31,876,000 FEBZ % FEXARBFEOARE

(2013: RMB50,861,000) relating to direct staff costs,
depreciation of manufacturing facilities and operating
lease payments in respect of land and buildings, which
are also included in the respective total amounts disclosed
above for each of these types of expenses.

The research and development costs are included
in “General and administrative expenses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9.
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executives’ remuneration for the
years, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules and
section 78 Schedule 11 to the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap.622) with reference to section 161 of the
predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.32),
are as follows:

EERFETHAEME

RIE E TR REERFHEDI (622
BIMKRNEISEALLENMERER
AEDI(ZE32E ) B1611RMMMERN F
FEERTBTHRASMESINT

2014 2013
—ZT—NF —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR®ET T
Fees (Note a) e (Kfata) 802 805
Other emoluments: Hu L -
— Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind — %% « E8L R EWEF
(Note b) (KtaEb) 1,010 1,444
— Contributions to retirement benefits — BIRBFET S
schemes (Note b) (Ki&Eb) 23 24
1,835 2,273
Notes k=2

() BYUFBTEES

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid or payable to independent non-executive

AEREENHENBLIERNTES

directors during the current year are as follows: R
2014 2013
—E-mEF —E-=F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBTT
Professor Bai Changhong HRITHE 162 161
Mr. Lee Keung Zog A 162 161
Ms. An Na L+ 162 161
486 483

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year

(2013: Nil).

HigRY —T—IEFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9.

REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes (continued)

Non-executive directors

The fees paid or payable to non-executive directors during

et (&)

FHITES

EERFERTBRAEME @)

AEEENREMNFERTEFTNE

the current year are as follows: ST
2014 2013
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBT T
Mr. Sze Ching Bor BIEREE 162 161
Mr. Cheung Miu (resigned on FWEE (RZE—IF
21 November 2014) +—A=-—+—B&E) 144 161
Mr. Chan Chak Chak Daniel FRERRIELE (R —UF
(appointed on 21 November 2014) +—A=+—BEZE) 10 -
316 322

There were no other emoluments payable to the non-
executive directors during the year (2013: Nil).

(b) Executive directors and chief executive officer

F AL FE A IEETTE S A H A B

2 (ZF—Z=ZF:F) -

(b) BTEBRITHAR

Salaries, Contributions
allowances to retirement
and benefits benefits
Fees in kind schemes Total
e 2R BIREF
wE REYEAR =T &l it waE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR¥TR AR%BTx AR%®TxR
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE—=-T— &
+=A=+-8
bR
Mr. Zhang Aiguo iR B B A - 489 10 499
Mr. Zheng Jingdong? B 5= B 5 A3 - 521 13 534
= 1,010 23 1,033
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ 9.
REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes (continued)

(b)

Executive directors and chief executive officer

EERERTRAEME @)

et (&)

(b) BTEBRTHRAR (&)

(continued)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement
and benefits benefits
Fees in kind schemes Total
& 2R RIKAEF
we REDEN ST FEEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTET
Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-ZE—=f
tTZA=t+—RLFE
Mr. Zheng Liuhe! Bl 7S AN 5 A - 280 - 280
Mr. Chen Qingwei? FeR 5 {2 ot A2 - 278 283
Mr. Zhang Aiguo R & B 5 A - 380 387
Mr. Zheng Jingdong? B 52 TR 5 A3 - 506 12 518
- 1,444 24 1,468

1 Mr. Zheng Liuhe was retired on 10 May 2013.

2 Mr. Chen Qingwei, who resigned on 10 May 2013
was also the chief executive officer of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as chief executive
officer up to the date of resignation.

3 Mr. Zheng Jingdong has been appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 10 May 2013
and his emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by him as the chief executive
officer.

There was no arrangement under which a director and

chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2013: Nil).

HIERE —T—OFFR

FA-

BAMEER T —=FHA
THRE-

REEEENR-Z—=FHA
THEHE TEEARBTR
wE EriMeaREaE
BHE B I ESTTIARS P IR (L
AR7 2 B < o

BRREENR-_T—=FHA
TRHEZERARAITHAAE
B E LA BREERTT
R BB PR AR 7S 2 BN o

BT ZEERITRARR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included

two (2013: two) directors and

the chief executive officer,

details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9
above. Details of the remuneration for the year of
the remaining highest paid employee who is neither a
director nor chief executive officer of the Company are as

10.

EEBREHES

FRN IERRSFEETEME(ZF
—=F: MBR)BEZRITHAR &
FHM S FBEN EXME - AAF]
HRFEZLIIFTREARNESFE
BRAEENMESFBET

follow:
2014 2013
Lk —
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #4328 R EWRET 1,312 1,542
Contributions to retirement benefits ROREHIFTE R
schemes 14 17
1,326 1,559

During the year ended 31

December 2014, the

remuneration of the non-director and non-chief executive
officer, highest paid employee fell within the band of
RMB500,001 to RMB1,000,000 (2013: RMB500,001 to

RMB1,000,000).

BHE-_ZT-—MNE+-_A=+—HItF
B FEBEZRIFTHREAZNESFHE
S &N T ARES500,001tE AR
#1,000,000C( —ZE—=4F: AR¥
500,0017T & A K #1,000,0007T ) Z
] ©

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. BB

2014 2013
—EB-mE —T=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBT T

Current - PRC BNHA —
Charge for the year F BT = 25,305
Under—provisions in prior years BEFERETNE 939 1,674
Total tax charge for the year FATIBERERE 939 26,979

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made
as the Group did not generate any assessable profits

arising in Hong Kong for th

e year (2013: Nil). Taxes

on profits assessable in the PRC have been calculated
at the prevailing rates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in

respect thereof.

Pursuant to the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the PRC
being effective on 1 January 2008, the PRC income tax
rate is unified to 25% for all enterprises.
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the “loss
before tax” per consolidated statement of profit or loss

11. FIBHBAX(&)
FNHEBAA RSB REME
TS R FT 2580 [ B AT 18 | 48R

and other comprehensive income as below: R

2014 2013

—2-F —E—=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETT

(Loss)/profit before tax BRI (1), % A (30,213) 94,857
Tax at the applicable tax rates RERB R ERIA (6,455) 24,006
Under-provisions in prior years BAFEREBETRE 939 1,674
Income not subject to tax HERBA (423) (2,824)
Expenses not deductible for tax DRI F 6,878 3,312
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised AERRBEE RN G E - 811
Income tax expense for the year FREHAX 939 26,979

Pursuant to the income tax law of the PRC, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after
31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate for the withholding
tax is 5% (2013: 5%). In estimating the withholding
taxes on dividends expected to be distributed by
those subsidiaries established in the PRC in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
of the Company have made assessment based on the
factors which included dividend policy and the level of
capital and working capital required for the Group’s
operations in the foreseeable future. No deferred tax
liability has been provided for the remaining of such
profits of approximately RMB516,360,000 (2013:
RMB534,822,000) as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2014, there were no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liabilities (2013: Nil) for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings of the Company’s subsidiary
expected to be distributed, after considering the
abovementioned factors, in the foreseeable future.

HIERE —T—OFFR

BIBEPBEFTEHE - £ B AL /951
BRERIINEEEESTRNOREAS
10%TEMF - WERTERZZTZN
F-—A—BRAER BRAR-_ZZ+
F+_A=Z+—HENEAF - fwE
BINRIEEEMB R EEEMT AR
TEAEA) - BIE AR FEI R B X AT E R
Ko AEERBERENHMRE B5%
(ZF—=F : 5%)c fharERREKL
KB ARIESER TSN NFE— A —
B #E AT R ER & A1) 9 K /9 A% 8. T 78 8 4R
MIENFEE  ARREZEEEENRSE
A=EHFG BEASBEARERK
BRNRARRRAEBEEMTNE
S NEBEAKE - REFWEFZ
FERBHm A A RES516,360,0007T
(ZZ=—=4: ARK#¥534,822,0007T)
FHRELEHIBERE  DARNSEAIF
FlIE O LR EEARRE BERER
A RARRIRAI RN o

N-ZZBE—ME+-_A=+—H &=
B LEMREERE A ERGRET D
PN PPN o P N gzl l:0)
NTEHNRMS  WES K ARERIEL
HEAE(ZZE—=F:F)
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

11.

12.

13.

14.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

(LOSS)/PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated (loss)/profit attributable to owners of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014
includes a loss of approximately RMB14,987,000 (2013:
profit of RMB1,517,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company (note 30(b)).

The loss of RMB14,987,000 (2013: profit of
RMB1,517,000) for the year ended 31 December 2014
included a management fee of RMB2,634,000 (2013:
RMB4,005,000) to a subsidiary of the Company.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was proposed for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 and since the end of the
reporting period.

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
consolidated loss for the year attributable to owners
of the Company and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 1,013,720,833 (2013: 1,014,923,299)
in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used
to calculate the basic loss per share for the year ended
31 December 2014 included the 1,013,720,833 ordinary
shares in issue.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 included the 1,017,020,833 ordinary
shares in issue and 3,300,000 repurchased and cancelled
shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings
per share amount presented for the year ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 in respect of a dilution as the
exercise price of the share options and warrants and the
conversion price of the convertible notes of the Company
outstanding during the years were higher than the
average market price of the Company’'s ordinary shares
for the year and accordingly, there is no dilutive effect on
the basic (loss)/earnings per share.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

FriSBiBA 2 (#)
AR R ) E ARSI AT #0883 4 45
FEH -

KATEE AES(EER)
gl
BE-_Z-NME+-_A=+—BItF
EAAREE ANEELZAER)
A B IEEE L AR 14,987,000
(ZZ—=F : af) AR¥1,517,000
L) BEEARAIMBEHREREE(K T
30(b))°

BE-_ZT-—NMFE+-_A=+—HBItF
EHE B A R#14,987,0000( =&
—=%F : % AMARK®1,517,0007T) &
BRARE—EHBARXNEERS
ANE#2,634,000(ZF—=F : A
R #4,005,0007T ) °

RE
HE_ZT-—NFER-_ZFT—Z=ZF+=A4
=+—BHIEFEURE SHRBRAK
WEZEZRIRERES

ER(EE)BA
ERENEETIENKAT RS AR
HERNGABEERFADRITERR
2 D0REF AL ER1,013,720,8330% (=
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% -BERSEE

Furniture
fixtures
Plant and Motor  andoffice Leasehold ~ Comstruction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment improvements in progress Total
e
RER
Br  HEREE RE BAERR HEEE kRIR g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARMTR ARETR ARETT AREfR
Group 555
Cost: ik
At 1 January 2014 WN=5-mE-A-A 72,543 13N 2,454 6,498 41,908 1,404 149,178
Addtions | - 1215 - 53 - 2,690 3958
Disposals £ - (4017) - (13) - - (6,030)
At 31 Decernber 2014 R-E-mET-A=1-H n58 21,569 2,454 6,538 41,908 4,09 149,106
Accumulated depreciation Zithe:
At 1 January 2014 N-2-mE-A-A 19,768 14,765 1714 2218 1703 - 46,168
Provided during the year EmEE 3,265 1,652 199 1,08 4,195 - 10339
Eliminated on disposals HERHE - (2,606) - ) - - (2615)
At 31 Decernber 2014 RE-mE+-A=1-H 23033 13811 1913 331 11,898 - 53,892
Net carying amount: REFE
At 31 December 2014 R-5-METZA=1-A 49,510 7,758 541 3301 30,010 4,094 95,214
Cost: WA
At 1 January 2013 N-E-=f-R-A 1583 021 1.0 6,313 40,168 841 151,348
Additions ! = 13 8 883 1,740 563 3487
Disposals il = (54) (4909) (698) = = (5,657)
At 31 December 2013 WZF-=EtZf=1-A 12543 13N 2454 6,498 41,908 1,404 149,178
Accumulated depreciation: ZhE:
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%-5-A 16,580 12970 5092 2084 4418 - 41,34
Provided during the year ERgR 3,188 1,844 6% 545 3,085 - 9,558
Eiminated on disposals HERHH - (9) (4.074) (611) - - (4734)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=F+f=1-H 19,768 14,765 1714 2218 1,703 - 46,168
Net carying amount; REHE
At 31 December 2013 N5-=E+ZA=1-A 52,775 9,606 140 4280 34,205 1404 103,010
B —T—NFEFH
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ ==

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Buildings Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20 years

Plant and machinery 10 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

Furniture, fixtures and 5 years

office equipment
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the

lease terms and 5 years

The Group’s buildings are situated in the PRC and are
held under medium term leases.

At 31 December 2014, included in “Buildings” is a property
for self-use with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB27,300,000 (2013: RMB27,300,000) for which the
Group has not yet obtain the building ownership certificate.
The Group is in the process of applying the building
ownership certificate.

The Group has pledged buildings with a net carrying
value of approximately RMB22,210,000 (2013:
25,475,000) to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

—mFE+-A=+—HIFE

15. ¥ -BERRE#

LR BB RREEE L TIIF
KIFEETE

BF FAR K20 2
LSk

B K i Es 104

TE 54

RE-EKER 54

/N

HEEE FAHMSFEZ

LSk

REBENBFHUNRE  REHH
GRS EE

R_ZE—NME+-_A=+— Ei EEE
(EES) }\Ja%mw 300,0007C( = =
&F )\Eﬁgznooooommaﬁﬁw
E¥ENABAAEENESEEMEEE "
Bt AIEF - AEERERFREE
FRE R -

AEBEEFAEMFENDARE
22,210,000 ( T —=F : AR¥
25,475,0007T) WEFIEAEARE B E
B—MIBITREE FPELR

16. S

2014 2013
—E-lmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T
Group REHE

Carrying amount at 1 January —A—HNEEE 35,991 36,836
Amortisation during the year F N (845) (845)
Carrying amount at 31 December +-—A=1+t—HBrREE 35,146 35,991

Current portion included in prepayments, st ATEZIAE 26 & E i fE
deposits and other receivables WRIER R B B 5 (816) (816)
Non-current portion IETB S 34,330 35,175

The leasehold land is situated in the PRC and the
respective prepaid lease payments are held under medium
term leases.

The Group has pledged the land use right with a net
carrying amount of approximately RMB35, 146,000 (2013:
RMB5,223,000) to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RBRABNIRE
2014 2013
—Z2-mEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR  ARMTR
Company QT
Unlisted shares, at cost FE LT - AR 303,659 303,658
Due from a subsidiary FE W —FEIFf B A I EKIR 584,772 566,472
888,431 870,130
Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out as follows: M A B M LB AT ¢
Place of registration/ Issued and
incorporation and fully paid up Percentage of equity attributable
Name operations capital to the Company Principal activities
ﬁ%ﬂ/ %f"_Lﬂ’& 2RR
£R RIRBEDH BUMREER FRREEEREDL IERH
Direct Indirect
E# B
BAOF International Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Provision of management
services
SENERARAT (30 10,0007 100 - REEBREK
Quanzhou Baofeng Shoes Co., Ltd.* PRC RMB544,229,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
("Quanzhou Baofeng") slippers
SMEREXERAT ([FNEE]) el AR#544,229,0007 - 100 BERHERE
Baofeng Modern (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 - Dormant
BERH(BR)ERAA B 10,0007 100 - EEER
Astute Sino Developments Limited British Virgin Islands ("BVI") Us$1 100 - Dormant
("Astute Sino”)
BELRARLA(EE)) ABRAHS E3 100 - EEER
([%BRZEE])
2D Material Technology Company Limited**  Hong Kong HK$100 100 - Dormant
("2D HK")
EMHRIBERAD - (245%)) B 10087 100 - EEER
2D Material Technology Limited*** BVI US$100 100 - Dormant
("2D BVI")
2D Material Technology Limited*** ABRAES 10057 100 - EREx
(20 BvI))
*  Quanzhou Baofeng is a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise E RINE & BRI BAE ML
established under the law of the PRC. BN E A E] e
** 2D HK is a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in Hong o BB RN T —ME+—A+H
Kong on 14 November 2014. BEABZMAZHEENBA
T
*** 2D BVI is a wholly-owned subsidiary incorporated in the *** 2D BVIRRZ-ZZ—WME+—A
BVI on 26 November 2014 T RBERBRELES ML
HEERBAT -

HEBY —B-mEsR Q5
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 17.

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-
free and has no fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion
of the directors, the balance is not repayable within
12 months from the end of the reporting period and is
considered as a quasi-equity loan to a subsidiary. The
carrying value of the amount due from a subsidiary
approximates to its fair value.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

KB DR RE (4

FE N — R B A M IR R AR AR
CEREETERN EERA &
BEANSRBEBEEN+—@EA
PIEE - BB BRET —AHEL
] AR AN B K o M — e B D
FEMERAERLATERS -

N R B A TR AEIER - £8
BB R -

18. INVENTORIES 18. 7 &

2014 2013
—EB-mFE  —FT=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET AREEFITT

Group REE
Raw materials and consumables R R KB FE S 7,911 9,304
Work in progress RS 11,226 8,942
Finished goods R T 11,830 14,171
30,967 32,417

During the year ended 31 December 2014, included in
the write-down of inventories of RMB411,000 recognised
in the profit or loss was a reversal of impairment loss
of RMB7,805,000 which had been written down to net
realisable value in prior period.

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19.

BE_Z-—ME+-_A=+—HIF
B REGPEIANFEERRARE
411,0007C B2 45 B R EE 1B A R
7,805,0007C * #Z 738 B 7 1B 1 HA fE
VL E A IR HE o

EWE ZRAREKREE
2014 2013
—ZE-mF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETT

Group AEE

Trade receivables FEUE 5 BRFX
Less allowance for doubtful debts TR BR A
Bills receivables FEUE &
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period offered to its customers is
generally for a period of three months. The Group seeks
to apply strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

The following is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade
and bills receivables, net of allowance for doubtful debts
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
invoice date, which approximates the respective revenue
recognition dates.

19. EREZRRREVREE &
AEBEEFPNESGRERUEE
ET REFPRHNEEN —RA=
@A -NEBBNBEBEZEREEN
JE U IR - Ia*ﬁ@f%ﬂ”*ﬁ?ﬁ A
REEERR -SREEEERRS
B %Eﬁtﬁﬁﬁiﬂi*ﬁﬂiﬁ%
ZERBEFBERERENANEF A
B BUBEEAEHEERR &
B EREENE SRR ERT BT
EF MmN E MR EEMNIER - &
WE ZERFIITER

/>

ERPR TEBEKEZERK
r‘%ﬂ&i‘%ﬁﬁ?n SRR ERNIREE
HA(E43 %EE’JM&MEMEHHJFH =) &l
g2l SHTEAT ¢

2014 2013

—EF-mFE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTRE  ARETR

Within 3 months 3EAR 28,969 26,243
4 to 6 months 4618 A 6,176 18,386
7 to 12 months 7E1218A 6,388 17,654
41,533 62,283

An aged analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables
that are not considered to be impaired is as follows:

N5 3 A AR AR E B R UWE 5 B
AR EREBENRESTAT

2014 2013

—F-mE T =F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFTT

Neither past due nor impaired Rig EA N R (B 28,969 26,243
Less than 3 months past due B HA3ME A LA 6,176 18,386
Over 3 months past due B HEARE B 3E A 6,388 17,654
41,533 62,283

HIERE —T—OFFR
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ ==

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (continued) 19.

Included in the Group’s trade and bills receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB 12,564,000 (2013: RMB36,040,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
mainly represent sales made to recognised and
creditworthy customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a
good repayment record with the Group. Based on past
experience, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that no impairment is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable.

—mFE+-A=+—HIFE

BWE Z RAREWRE (&

AEBRKE ZERERAKEKREESEE
BIEERmAEASAR12,564,0007T
(ZZ—=% : AR¥36,040,0007T)
MEWERZ ZEXERREBHE
B HR T AN 5 BN R B E (B R B &S
BRE - AEEVERZSERES
EHEH&T@DD ©

REMMERENEEFEIR M
MERAEEERNEPIEHMNEE
%5 P B e R AT 8%

B 8 BB RIRUE B IR U IR S ) % fE
HEAEEARFERLCENBILE
F-REBERR ARREZEFAR
HREEERUESERNNE BT
BEADR BRI 2 E8WE - MBEEL
BERE

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts RERREST
2014 2013
—E-lmF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
As at 1 January A—H—H 1,162 =

(Reversal of impairment loss)/impairment  (#[a]) /FHEEUE 5 8R FUR

loss on trade receivables B8 (19) 1,162
As at 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 1,143 1,162

Included in the impairment loss are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
RMB1,143,000 (2013: RMB1,162,000) which are long
outstanding. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

20. ENFIE  BERHEMEKR

RECEIVABLES br|
Group Company
EE XA F
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mFE —Z—= —E-OFE —T—=%F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR AR®TT AR%®FTnR ARETT
Prepayments: FEfTROA ¢
— Advanced to customers — AR P 6,514 16,511 - =
— Rental deposits —MHeiEe 3,025 6,050 = =
— License fees —REB 1,203 810 - 499
— Prepaid lease payments  —FEfIHH S 816 816 = =
— Others —HA 218 414 — -
Value added tax (“VAT") EdEEE
recoverable ([2BEF ) = 1,675 — -
Deposits oA 234 552 = =
Other receivables H b pE Y Rk IE 2,024 12,939 - =
14,034 39,767 - 499

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

As at 31 December 2013, included in other receivables
were amount advanced to an independent third party
amounting to RMB9,000,000. The amount is unsecured,
carried interest rate at 20.40% per annum and
repayment on 14 January 2014. The amount was fully

settled during the year.

B

—E-EFR

bt & A e B SORUE - AT A Lt
MEEREY S AR A A BT HA P MR e R AT 8%
B EWRIR A R -

R-ZZBE—=F+-A=+—H" H#b
R EBERRAN T BB LE=F
BB AR ¥9,000,0007T K FKIE « 32K
HAEEKR  RFEFZFE20.40%5 5
WER-_ZT—NF—A+MAEE-
ZFTBERFANBEES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

21.

22.

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

Deposits were pledged for bills payable of RMB 18,986,000
(2013: RMB17,818,000) for the year ended 31 December
2014 (note 22).

At 31 December 2014, the cash and bank balances
and pledged deposits of the Group denominated
in RMB amounted to RMB1,153,154,000 (2013:
RMB1,171,946,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under the PRC Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of
Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Pledged deposits earn fixed
interest rate ranging from 2.6% to 2.8% (2013: 3.05%)
per annum. The bank balances and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

1. EEREFERNRE RBITHEER

HE-_Z-—-NF+_A=+—HItF
€ Bt ARE18,986,000c( ==&
—=4F: AR#¥17,818,0007T ) H fE
NEBEERFR(HIFE22)0

R-ZE—NME+_—_A=+—8 A&
EUAARBGENRE RIBITEH K
BEE TR AEAR,153,154,000
T Z B — = F£: AR &
1,171,946,0007C )c A R¥ET T B |
R EME - R RBIFEH R
P& E B G D & 4518 - S8 R EE IR
RE ANEBEEBSBIRBETINE
ETEHIRITHE A RIS H R H fh INEE o

RITHESRERBTERFNERMED
FEEERGE BEREFERIEETESF
MENF26%E2.8%(ZF—=4F:

3.05%)st B SRITEHR KRB EHER
FREAEFEEZ2ATHEE X CENIR

7o

22. BNEZRRARENRE

2014 2013

—F-mFE T =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Group AEE

Trade payables FEHE IR 29,311 17,298
Bills payables i ANEE 18,986 17,818
48,297 35,116
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (continued) 22. BERHESRARENSEEE)
An aged analysis of the Group’s trade and bills payables RERHAR NEBENEBESER KL
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the FERN ERIRRZ A HRE SN ERE ST
invoice date, is as follows: T

2014 2013
—B-mFE —F=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTT AREBTT

Group rEE
Within 3 months 3MEARN 33,930 24,747
Over 3 months 3ME A E 14,367 10,369
48,297 35,116
The trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing and ENESERRENEBRTHE B
are normally settled on six months terms (2013: two to —BRAER(ZE—=F: MEN
six months). The bills payable of RMB18,986,000 (2013: BA)AZKEE - R-_T—MF+_A
RMB17,818,000) were secured by the Group’s pledged =t+—R AEERBEERERA
deposits amounting to RMB5,696,000 as at 31 December K #5,696,000it(Z 2 —=F : AR
2014 (2013: RMB5,546,000). #5,546,0007T ) & A K #18,986,000
T(ZE—=%F: AK¥17,818,000
TO) R BN RBREL R
23. DEPOSITS RECEIVED, OTHER PAYABLES 23. EWRE  HttENRERE
AND ACCRUALS =t E A
Group Company
FEE AT
2014 2013 2014 2013

—2-mFE —T-=-F ZF-mFE —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETRE AR¥ETR ARBTT

Deposits received: BEIES
— Advanced from customers - B FE B RIA 17,477 2,200 15,777 -
— Others - HAth 224 60 632 -
Other payables H fh e~ FRIE 22,112 21,425 1,813 1,711
VAT payable JESF IR {E T 3,284 - = -
Accruals ezt E A 7,954 8,665 2,214 365
51,051 32,350 20,436 2,076
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have a credit HMENRIBIFE EEHARE
term of two to three months. =EATRE °
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REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 EZ ==

—mFE+-A=+—HIFE

24. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS 24. GTERITHEE
2014 2013
—E-NEF —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EFTT
Group AEE
Secured bank loans repayable within one ZBR—EREEBH G KPR
year 1TER 121,884 142,000
(a) At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the bank loans (@) MR-ZE-NFR-_ZE—=F1+=
were denominated in RMB and bore interest rates A=+—8" fE?i%‘ihiﬁLA}\E
ranging from: BEHE WA TEE R S X5
8
Year ended 5.600% — 7.950% HE_ZT-MMF FF5600%%
31 December 2014 per annum +=—A=1+—H8H 7.950%
IFFE
Year ended 5.360% — 6.000% HE—ZE—=F #&HF5360%%
31 December 2013 per annum +=—A=1+—H 6.000%
IFFE

(b)

At 31 December 2014, the secured bank loans of
the Group were secured by a pledge of the Group’s
buildings (note 15) and land use right (note 16),
amounting to approximately RMB22,210,000
(2013: RMB25,475,000) and approximately
RMB35,146,000 (2013: RMB5,223,000) respectively.
In addition, the bank loans were guaranteed by two
independent third parties.
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35,146,000 —ZE—=F : AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

Pursuant to a subscription agreement entered into with
Asia Equity Value Ltd (the “Subscriber”) on 8 June 2012
(the “Subscription Agreement”), the Company issued a
7% senior guaranteed convertible notes with a principal
amount of HK$176,000,000 (i.e. RMB143,470,000)
(the "Convertible Notes”) to the Subscriber on 21 June
2012 (the "lIssuance Date”). In addition, pursuant to
the Subscription Agreement, the Company also issued
to the Subscriber warrants (“Warrants”) which carry the
rights to subscribe for 62,026,431 new ordinary shares
of the Company as a condition to the issuance of the
Convertible Notes.

At the same time, Best Mark International Limited
(the “Stock Lender”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, entered into a stock borrowing agreement
(the “Stock Borrowing Agreement”) with the Subscriber,
pursuant to which the Stock Lender lent the Subscriber
32,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company on the
Issuance Date at nil consideration (see “Stock Borrowing”
below).

Convertible Notes

The Convertible Notes give the holder of the Convertible
Notes (the “Notes Holder”) the right (the “Conversion
Right”) to convert all or any part of the outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Notes into fully
paid ordinary shares of US$0.01 each in the Company
at HK$1.31 per share (the “Conversion Price”). The
Conversion Price is subject to anti-dilution adjustment for
stock dividends, stock splits, dilutive securities issuances
and other customary adjustment events from time to
time in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Convertible Notes. The Notes Holder can exercise the
Conversion Right from time to time during the conversion
period from the issuance date to the maturity date. The
Convertible Notes shall mature on the third anniversary
of the Issuance Date (i.e. 21 June 2015) (the “Maturity
Date”).

HIERE —T—OFFR

25. AR RERERER

BERZZE— =475 A/\ H HAsia
Equity Value Ltd([REEA 1)ETZAYR
Bhz(lREWBZ]) AR27AR=F
——EXNA-FT—B(ETEHDMA
R A 1T AL % A176,000,00078
T (BN A R #143,470,0007T )~ #£7%
B EAERAIRARTE ([ AT R
ZE )t RIBRERZE AR T
AR ABEITRRER (mﬂﬂg
F ) ERBITAIREE NI - R
REZHEENTRELRAQF
62,026,431 f& 3T E @A

B B AN QA = Z IR EBest Mark
International Limited([ &% A |) 252
AR —HERBZERBR
=) Bl ERARBITHHUEA
B AR A fE B 42 F]32,000,0004%
TR (R TR ])-

AR EE

THEREER TURREEFEA
(ZEFEADERRRRE]) LA
1 31BT([ARE ) F TR E
BERE2HREMIBORLIBRSEER
BMARNR R EFIREE.0O1ETTHE R
LR MR EERE A BRREED
BREESE THEERERENR
BERAE REFS BEEHET
MEMEEAEESHMTUAAR-F
BRFAEANRBEBRITEHEZREAE
1E A #2 A% B RS A 7 B 1T {5 HR AR A o |
BRI EE1TH BA S = R F
ER(AIZE—RAF<A=-+—8)
([EIE8E DEISE -
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)
Convertible Notes (continued)

The Company shall redeem the principal amount
of the Convertible Notes in equal installments of
HK$16,000,000 (i.e. RMB13,043,000) on each of dates
falling six, nine, twelve, fifteen, eighteen, twenty-one,
twenty-four, twenty-seven, thirty, thirty-three, and thirty-
six months after the Issuance Date (each a “Repayment
Date”) and the first Repayment Date being the 180th day
following the Issuance Date.

If on any date (the “Call Exercise Date"”) after the
Issuance Date, the volume weighted average price per
share, is greater than 160% of the reference market price
as mentioned in the Subscription Agreement for each of
the 20 consecutive trading days immediately preceding
the Call Exercise Date and provided that certain standard
equity conditions are and remain satisfied during such
period, the Company may issue a call exercise notice to
require the Subscriber to exercise the right of conversion
attached to the Convertible Notes in whole or in part.

The Company is obliged to pay interest on the
Convertible Notes at a rate of 7% per annum on each
Repayment Date. Interest is computed on the basis of a
360-day year for the actual number of days lapsed.

The principal repayment amount and accrued but unpaid
interest thereto shall be payable either i) in whole in cash;
ii) in whole in shares; or iii) in a combination of cash
and shares, provided that the Company may only pay
such installments in shares, in accordance with certain
terms and conditions as mentioned in the Subscription
Agreement.

Upon the occurrence of any events of defaults or certain
events as mentioned in the Subscription Agreement,
the Notes Holder may elect to require the Company to
redeem all of the outstanding principal amount under the
Convertible Notes. As long as the Notes Holder does not
elect to require the Company to redeem the Convertible
Notes before the Maturity Date due to the occurrence of
the events aforementioned, the Company is obliged to
pay interest at 7% per annum until the Convertible Notes
are converted or redeemed, whichever date is earlier.
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25. TRREEREBRER &

AREREEE)
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[@ 7K 4 %816,000,00078 7L ( B A R ¥
13,043,00070) K AT AR 245 - 56— 1@
EEBHHAZITHERE180H -

i B 17 B R RO ER B B ([ 23Rk1T
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)
Convertible Notes (continued)

In the event where the Company fails or is unable to
deliver shares of the Company upon the exercise of any
right to convert attached to any Convertible Notes due
to any restriction on the allotment or issuance of shares,
the Company shall (i) deliver the maximum number of
shares permitted to be allotted or issued by the Company
to the Notes Holder (the “Shortfall Shares”) and (ii) pay
such Notes Holder an amount in cash to be calculated by:
120% x (number of shares required to be delivered by the
Company — the Shortfall Shares) x the volume weighted
average price per share as of the date of the relevant
convertible notes conversion notice.

The Convertible Notes included a debt instrument with
embedded derivatives. Upon initial recognition, the
Convertible Notes are designated as financial liabilities
at FVTPL. The fair value of the Convertible Notes is
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and any
gains or losses arising from changes in fair value are
recognised in the income statement.

The Conversion Price of the Convertible Notes had been
adjusted from HK$1.31 to HK$1.27 in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Convertible Notes with
effect from 12 October 2012 as the Company declared
and announced the 2012 interim dividend of HK2.5 cents
per ordinary share on 31 August 2012.

On 7 December 2012, the Company had redeemed
the first outstanding installment of HK$16,000,000
of the Convertible Notes and the accrued interest of
HK$6,160,000 (up to the first Repayment Date) by
issuing 21,806,833 ordinary shares with a nominal value
of US$0.01 each at a price of approximately HK$1.02
per share to the Subscriber for the first repayment due
on 21 December 2012 (the “First Repayment”). The
fair value of the first outstanding installment redeemed
was RMB14,475,000 at the First Repayment Date on
21 December 2012, with reference to the valuations
performed by BMI Appraisals Limited (“BMI”), an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers.

HIERE —T—OFFR

25. TRREEREBRER &

ARBRRE(E)

i 28 22 ) B A e 65 S BT BN (R (AT R
i AR BE R T 6 AT A AR AR MY S &Y
E] SR ERR AR A Bty - Bl
ARBENARBEFAEAREARRAF
ARESBETRONESEE (8
BED RIAREMZERERE A
S —ERIE  RARIRRA T I0RA
B/ 1120% x (A2 R]#78RE /) BX
BB - ZBBE) x RERARK
SRABEN A RANFEBEOHR S
EhnETaE-

MR EEEEMERARITETR
WER TR - NERERE  AIHRA
SBEHEERBRATEFABZNE
BEE - TRERENAFERER
BPREFAE AVEEPELEN
ERI A BN WS R AR o

HRARRR - ZE——FNA=1+—
HERMAh —_Z——FhEREF
WERR2 581 - B —FE——F1+A
T ARARBREENBRREDRE
AR SRR MR R AR 1,318 7T
RN 27T o

R-FE——E+-_A+08 -~ 8%
BREE(BXEEDR=-Z—=F
+ZA=Zt+—HBARRBALEGR
#91.0278 703 1721,806,8330% F A% M
BEO.0IETTHE AW EO Tk =
ERME—BHEREES>HRE
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6,160,000 L (E= B REEBH)-
KR ZEB BHELERMHER A
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B REarEEE - ——F1+=
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14,475,0007T °
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)
Convertible Notes (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group
repaid part of the principal amount of convertible
notes of RMB50,560,000 and accrued interest of
RMB5,829,000 by cash.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group
repaid part of the principal amount of Convertible
Notes of RMB25,315,000 and accrued interest of
RMB4,409,000 by cash up to 21 June 2014. Subsequent
to 21 June 2014, the Group did not make any payment
of principals and interests (the “Non-Payments”) in
accordance with the payment schedule as stated in
the Subscription Agreement as the Subscriber was
negotiating with three independent third parties (the
“Transferees”) to dispose (the “Disposal”) of the
Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$64,000,000, representing the entire outstanding
principal amount of the Convertible Notes.

The terms and conditions of the Disposal was
finally concluded and the agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) was entered amongst the Subscriber and
Transferees on 29 October 2014. The Transferees agreed
that the Non-Payments have not constituted any breach
of the terms and conditions as stated in Subscription
Agreement and waived the Group’s obligation to make
payment of the Non-Payments and the remaining
installment until the Maturity Date.

Warrants

The Warrants initially give the holder of the Warrants
(the "Warrants Holder”) the rights to subscribe for
62,026,431 new shares of the Company’s ordinary
shares. The initial subscription price of the Warrants is
HK$1.53 per share (the “Subscription Price”), subject
to anti-dilution adjustment for stock dividends, stock
splits, dilutive securities issuances and other customary
adjustment events from time to time in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the Warrants. The
subscription period of the Warrants commences from 6
months after the Issuance Date (i.e. 22 December 2012)
(the “Warrants Subscription Date”), and will mature on
the fifth anniversary from the Warrants Subscription Date
(i.e. 22 December 2017).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Warrants (continued)

Upon the occurrence of any events of defaults or certain
events as mentioned in the Subscription Agreement,
the Warrants Holder may elect to require the Company
to redeem or purchase all or a portion of its Warrants
at a price equal to the Black Scholes Value in respect of
the relevant Warrants as mentioned in the Subscription
Agreement.

The Warrants are classified as derivatives and are
accounted for as financial liabilities at FVTPL upon
initial recognition. The fair value of the Warrants are
remeasured at the end of each reporting period and
any gains or losses arising from change in fair value are
recognised in the income statement.

On 7 February 2013, the Company has entered into a
supplemental instrument with the Subscriber to amend
certain major terms and conditions of the Warrants (the
“Supplemental Warrant Instrument”). The Supplemental
Warrant Instrument has been approved by the Subscriber
as the sole holder of the Warrants in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the Warrants. In accordance
with the Supplemental Warrant Instrument, the Company
and the Subscriber agreed that any adjustments to the
Subscription Price should take effect if the adjustment
is HK$0.01 or more. As a result of the above, the
Subscription Price has been adjusted from HK$1.53 to
HK$1.49 with effect from 12 October 2012 as a result of
the distribution of the 2012 interim dividend of HK2.5
cents per ordinary share by the Company.

No warrants have been exercised during both years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

According to the Disposal Agreement, the Warrants were
also transferred from the Subscriber to the Transferees on
29 October 2014.

Upon full subscription of the Warrants, a total of
63,691,570 new shares will be issued and the net
proceeds upon full subscription are approximately
HK$94,900,000 (i.e. RMB77,360,000).
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)
Stock Borrowing

At the same time of the Subscriber entering into the
Subscription Agreement, the Stock Lender, a substantial
shareholder of the Company, entered into a Stock
Borrowing Agreement with the Subscriber, pursuant
to which the Stock Lender lent 32,000,000 of the
Company’s ordinary shares to the Subscriber on the
Issuance Date with no interest, consideration and
collateral. The legal title of the shares will be returned to
the Stock Lender on the second business day following
the later of i) the date on which the principal and interest
of the Convertible Notes have been redeemed and paid in
full by the Company or ii) the date on which all Warrants
have been exercised or expired.

The stock borrowing arrangement (the “Stock Borrowing
Arrangement”) is considered as a deemed capital
contribution to the Company from a shareholder and
accounted for as an equity component. Upon initial
recognition, the value of such contribution from the
substantial shareholder is accounted for as a deemed
contribution in the shareholder’s equity. The carrying
amount of such contribution from the substantial
shareholder is not remeasured in subsequent years.

Since 27 July 2012, the shares of the Company
are no longer within the definition of “Designated
Security” under the Rules of the Stock Exchange. At
the request of the Subscriber, on 10 September 2012,
the Stock Lender and the Subscriber entered into an
amendment agreement (the “Amendment Agreement”)
to amend the Stock Borrowing Agreement. Pursuant
to the Amendment Agreement, the terms in the Stock
Borrowing Agreement has been modified to a share
transfer agreement (the “Share Transfer Agreement”),
pursuant to which 32,000,000 of the Company’s ordinary
shares were sold by the Stock Lender to the Subscriber at
HK$32,320,000 (the “Consideration”). The Stock Lender
is no longer entitled to the redelivery of the respective
shares or their equivalent under the Share Transfer
Agreement.
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)
Stock Borrowing (continued)

On 10 September 2012, the Stock Lender and the
Subscriber entered into a letter agreement (the “Call
and Put Option Confirmation”) pursuant to which the
Subscriber had granted to the Stock Lender the right to
purchase 32,000,000 of the Company’s ordinary shares
at a strike price of HK$1.01 (the “Call Option”) and
the Stock Lender has granted the Subscriber the right
to require the Stock Lender to purchase 32,000,000 of
the Company’s ordinary shares at the same strike price
(the “Put Option”). The Stock Lender may exercise the
Call Option at any time and from time to time during
the period between (i) the later of (a) the date on which
the principal and interest of the Convertible Notes and
all other sums outstanding and payable by the Company
under the Amendment Agreement have been redeemed
and/or paid in full by the Company; and (b) the date on
which all Warrants have been exercised or expired (the
“Expiration Date”) and (ii) 60 days after the Expiration
Date (both dates inclusive), unless any of the events as
stipulated under the Call and Put Option Confirmation
occur earlier than the Expiration Date, which will then
entitle the Stock Lender to exercise the Call Option
earlier. The Subscriber may exercise the Put Option at any
time and from time to time between the date on which
the Amendment Agreement became effective and 60
days after the Expiration Date (both dates inclusive).

Pursuant to the Call and Put Option Confirmation, the
Stock Lender shall pay the aggregate strike price payable
upon exercise of the Put Option in full to the Subscriber
as credit support for its obligations in relation to the Put
Option, which has been satisfied by offsetting against
the Subscriber’s obligation to pay the Consideration of
HK$32,320,000 to the Stock Lender.

As details set out in the Company’s announcement
dated 19 December 2014, 32,000,000 of the Company’s
ordinary shares had been transferred by the Subscriber to
the Stock Lender and the transaction set out in the Call
and Put Option Confirmation was terminated.
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes, the Warrants
and the Stock Borrowing Arrangement

At the Issuance Date, the consideration received totaling
HK$176,000,000 (equivalent to RMB143,470,000)
was allocated by the directors of the Company to
the Convertible Notes, the Warrants and a deemed
contribution from a substantial shareholder under the
Stock Borrowing Arrangement, with reference to the
valuations performed by BMI as follows:

—mFE+-A=+—HIFE

25. TRREEREBRER &

TRERE TREIRERZH
518

FE7THER - B E A 176,000,000
/mﬂﬁgmAEMMmmmmmm
KAREEBLEFAMEZHE DR
ZAMR R - RIRER &fﬁﬂxzﬂitlﬁ
TEPRIEEERFTE AT ¢

RMB'000
AREFTT
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: BAFEF ARG EmMEE
Convertible Notes GIE: &2 122,204
Warrants R HERE 9,083
Deemed contribution from a substantial ﬁ%ﬂxiz?ﬁlﬁ—rﬁ'\]ﬁ{/ﬁ
shareholder under the Stock Borrowing FERFIFE
Arrangement 12,183
Consideration received B E 143,470
The movements of the Convertible Notes and the AR N AR E B R B EN IO ¢
Warrants were as follows:
Convertible
Notes Warrants Total
CIE: 34 AR R e
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREET T AR®ET T
Fair value at 1 January 2013 RZT—=%F
—HA—HrAYE 146,133 10,337 156,470
The 2" to 5 repayment FE_FERREE (56,389) - (56,389)
Fair value gain credited to profit $WE/\TE SaT AR
or loss during the year N ER S (9,798) (7,318) (17,116)
Fair value at 31 December 2013 RNZ=ZZT—=
+=ZA=+—H&®
NE 79,946 3,019 82,965
The 6™ to 7t repayment FEREFLRER (29,724) - (29,724)
Fair value loss charged to profit 4 AR EZIIKA
or loss during the year NEEEE 2,901 1,118 4,019
Fair value at 31 December 2014 R —Z—pO4
+=—A=+—H8%
NS 53,123 4,137 57,260
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES AND WARRANTS 25. I BEREERARESR (&)

(continued)

Valuation of the Convertible Notes, the Warrants
and the Stock Borrowing Arrangement (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the fair values of
the Convertible Notes and the Warrants were based on
the valuations performed by Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent firm of professionally qualified valuers and
calculated using the binomial model and the inputs into
the model were as follows:

THRERE RRERERERZ
fh{E (&)
R-FE—NERIZT—=F+_H
=t—H ARRRENMAREED
NFEHNREBIERARERMGEE
Bbeh iz & EHERR AR A RRA
“HEBRAGFEMGE ZEANBAE
LN

2014 2013
—E-mEF —T—=F
Convertible Notes CIE: 94
Stock price (HK$) RECETT) 0.560 0.530
Principal amount (HK$'000) AeFE(FHET) 64,000 96,000
Coupon rate (%) ZHEFIZE(%) 7.000 7.000
Conversion price (HK$) HRG(E (B T) 1.270 1.270
Volatility (%) R (%) 83.600 37.187-62.790
Risk-free rate (% per annum) ERBRHE%  FF) 0.060 0.101-0.258
Expected life (years) TEEAFHA(4F) 0.470  0.220-1.470
Expected dividend yield (%) T8 BARR B a2 (%) 0 0
Warrants IR REE
Stock price (HK$) IRE(ETT) 0.560 0.530
Exercise price (HK$) TEECET) 1.490 1.490
Volatility (%) B8 (%) 59.310 48.370
Risk-free rate (% per annum) ERRAE%  5F) 0.980 1.030
Expected life (years) TEERFEA(4F) 2.975 3.975
Expected dividend yield (%) TEHARR B s 2R (%) 0 0

HigRY —T—IEFR

111



112

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBHRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

26.

27.

28.

AMOUNT DUE TO A DIRECTOR

The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand. The amount was fully settled during the year.

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

The amount represents Group’s withholding taxes to
the dividend payable by a PRC subsidiary amounted
RMB62,075,000 as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The Group has no significant unprovided deferred tax in
respect of the reporting period and as at the end of the
reporting period (2013: RMB3,071,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the authorised and issued share capital of
the Company are as follows:

26.

27.

28.

BN—BESNE
MR RMIER - 8 RBR BN
(B8 - ZRECRERBRLES -

EEBBARE
REBEAEER—RPEANBAF
REMAREMENR R-T—mFR
—E-Z4+-A=t—BAARME
62,075,0007T °

HEEZRPR AEB T EBBE R
HEMEARABEBEEHRBE(ZZ
—=4%F: AR#¥3,071,0007T)°

g <
ARAREERBETRAZFIBN
T

2014 2013
—Z-F —E—=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTIT
Authorised: JERE
5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of 5,000,000,000 % &I EI1E
US$0.01 each 0.013E TR EEA% 342,400 342,400
Issued and fully paid: BEEITREE :
1,013,720,833 ordinary shares of 1,013,720,833 B EE
US$0.01 each 0.013ETTH) @A 67,258 67,258
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

28. RA(#&)

Ordinary shares = IR
Number of Nominal Nominal
ordinary value value
shares of ordinary of ordinary
US$0.01 each shares shares
BRMEE0.01
ETHEBR
8 AR EE ZEREE
Us$'000 RMB'000
FET ARETT
Authorised: JEIE ¢
At 1 January 2013, 31 MN-E—=4F
December 2013, —H—8"
1 January 2014 and —E—=4F
31 December 2014 +=—A=+—8-
—E-FE—H—H
—TpE
+—A=1+—H 5,000,000,000 50,000 342,400
Issued: BT :
At 1 January 2013 R-—ZT—=#—HF—H 1,017,020,833 10,170 67,466
Repurchase and &[] K s sH AR 0 (M aE)
cancellation of shares
(Note) (3,300,000) (33) (208)
At 31 December 2013, NR-E—=4F
1 January 2014 and +=—A=+—8"
31 December 2014 —F—NF—H
—HBER=_E—NHF
+=-—A=+—H 1,013,720,833 10,137 67,258

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company
repurchased its 3,300,000 ordinary shares at prices ranging
from HK$0.92 to HK$0.93 per share at a total consideration of
approximately HK$3,059,000 (equivalent to RMB2,478,000).
The 3,300,000 repurchased ordinary shares were cancelled
during the year ended 31 December 2013. The premium of
approximately HK$2,811,000 (equivalent to RMB2,270,000)
paid on the repurchase of such shares was debited to the share
premium account and an amount of HK$258,000 (equivalent

to RMB208,000) was transferred from

retained profits of the

Company to the capital redemption reserve as set out in note 30

to the consolidated financial statements.

HIERE —T—OFFR

izt -

HE_Z—=F+-_H=+—HIFE"
7N X B @ B E3,300,0000% I @A - @B
BN FHR092BILE0.93F L RE
42 EE49 43,059,000 T (FHE R AR
2,478,0007T) ° 3,300,0000% & [0 §& & 3@
BREE—_E—=F+=_A=+—H1t
FEFRFH - REBEZERMEINAD
i B 452,811,000 L (HERARE
2,270,0005T) ' E B M EERNER €
¥ /4258,000/8 7T (HHE X A K #208,000
TL)EBARARB % EBEEARER
8 FHIBE NG M IS MR 5130 ©
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 January 2011, the Company operates a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include, among
others, the Company’s directors, including independent
non-executive directors, employees, suppliers of goods
or services, customers, consultants of the Group, the
Company’s shareholders, and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries. The Scheme
became effective on 28 January 2011 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for
10 years from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Scheme and any other schemes of the Group shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in
issue at the Listing Date. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their respective associates, are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of
the Company, or to any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5 million, in the 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.

An offer of the grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer, upon payment of
a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee.
The exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors, and which shall not exceed
10 years after the date on which the share options are
granted and accepted. The exercise of any option may
be subject to a vesting schedule to be determined by the
Board.
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29. BB RESTE

R-ZE——F—ANB - AREEE
—RERERE([ZETEl]) §&ER
RAREXRGZRNELERZEE
RS EE LR ALERRE MR - LA EI A
BER2EERE(EFERE)ARAE
Z(BRBUFATER) AKEE
B EmaRGHEER TP BH-
ARBRER KA R BN E R B 2 E[
FEBBR - Rt 8l —F——F—
AZ T N\BERER  RIFEBUEHE
7 BRI HAZ B RS T FAREA

><‘,]I:

BIEZTE R AEB TR E s8R
H R ET A B TR A T EITH
BOE&EEHEE  AETBBBEARF
R ETHBEBEITRG Z210%  RE
A+ @A BHER BIEZTERT
BRBERSHEZBREN FHITZ
B RO E B AR BT EEE 2%
ITIRID 2 1% AR o % H BB IR §l 2
R E b B AR b 15 B AR A AR K
@ b

BYARBIES FETHRABRE
TRES M EE B EA T 2B
ERBUIERNTES SR E I
Sho AR BEES 1+ =@ A HE
N W FARAREERES BT IE
PMITE BB EEMBEEA LT 2 M
MR E AN A R 2 BEITAR(70.1%
FRBEREBEERBEREBHIET =
EABEARERO KT ENE 2R
{EB3#85,000,000/8 7T » BB RR R A
RERARE EEEdhE-

RHBhgE s 2O REL B MET
“ T NARABAERAXNEERE
BT T IR - PRI BRI 2 17
FEHOHESFETE TNMEHRBRERE
B R A HR10F - EMER
BZITEAEIRREZTSETE ZH
JEBH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 29. BBIRESTEI (&

The exercise price of share options is determinable
by the directors of the Company, but may not be less
than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

BREZTEERARRESEE -
HEABERRTZREEGNR K
DR BB AR 2 40 B BRI R 32 A 2 W T
B (DA RB ROV EEEL B HA
T fE%R 5 BB 3P 2 P W B &
(i) N A B PR B EE ©

AR T TR A AMER B S
BRRAGHREZHEF -

FRN - RBEFE W ARITEEAE R E LR
T

2014 2013
—E-NF —E-=%

Weighted Weighted
average  Number of average Number of
exercise price options  exercise price options

InREF INFEF
THREE BREHAE 11108 B EHA
At 1 January R—H—H 1.18 13,950,000 1.18 34,000,000
Forfeited during the year F AR UL 1.18 = 1.18 (6,100,000)
Cancelled during the year FNFEH 1.18 (3,700,000) 1.18  (13,950,000)
At 31 December R+-_A=+—H 1.18 10,250,000 1.18 13,950,000

No share options were granted and exercised, and nil
(2013: 6,100,000) share options were forfeited during
the year ended 31 December 2014 due to cessation of
employment of the participants.

In addition, 3,700,000 (2013:13,950,000) share
options were cancelled as the Group failed to meet the
performance target as set out in the Scheme. Details of
the performance target have been set out in Company’s
announcement dated 30 August 2011.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2014
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

HIERE —T—OFFR

REBE-ZFT-—HNF+-_A=t—HL
FE MEBBEERLRTE H
EZH(ZF—=%F 6,100,000 )
BRER2RERIFERBEMOR
Y

AN - AR AN B REERF & FTEIFTEL
RIFHIZ 3,700,000 ( ZFE—=%:

13,950,00017 ) AR EC 7E8H - BEAR
REEZHBHNARRIBHAZST
—ENA=ZTHZAHA -

R-ZZE—NFE+ - =+—HBEAKT
R T Y A EE T ARA ¢
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

- 10,250,000 of such share options were vested on
30 August 2012 with an exercise period from 30
August 2012 to 29 August 2016.

The outstanding share options as at 31 December 2013
were vested to the grantees in the following manner:

- 10,250,000 of such share options were vested on
30 August 2012 with an exercise period from 30
August 2012 to 29 August 2016; and

- 3,700,000 of such share options are vested on
30 August 2013 with an exercise period from 30
August 2013 to 29 August 2016.

The exercise price and exercise period of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period
are as follows:

. BBRREST R
ZEREARER10,250, ooofﬁaﬁA
:Zj__fﬁ/\ﬁ +E| mJE'
FER— =—=—_¢J\H_+Eli
—E—R"ENAZ+ANB-

M=F—=%+=A=+—RAHKf
ERRER TSI R BB T REA -

—  ZEWEIRHER 10,250,000 E R
—E——_FNA=+HEB 171
FHAE-_T——FNA=+HZE
—T—XRFENA=-t+NB &

— ZEBER#ER3,700,00010 R =
T——FN\A=+HEB 7%
HAE—_T—=F)/\A=+HE_
E—RENA=-F+B-

R 2 WA R A ARITE R B RENTTE
B R ATERT

2014
—E-F
Exercise price
Number of options HK$ per share Exercise period
BREHER THEESRET 1T
10,250,000 1.18 30 August 2012 to 29 August 2016
—FNA=FTREZZE—X"FEN\A=+1HB
2013
—T—=F
Exercise price
Number of options HK$ per share Exercise period
B e A TEESBET 1T{E 8
13,950,000 1.18 30 August 2012 to 29 August 2016

—E——HFNA=+HE_ZE—X"ENA=-_TNH

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2011 was HK$12,880,000
(equivalent to RMB10,549,000) of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of nil (2013:
RMB392,000) during the year ended 31 December 2014.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2011 was estimated
as at the date of grant, using a binomial model, taking
into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs
to the model used:

29. IBRRAESHEI(#)
HE-ZT——F+A=+—RH1tF
EERLRUREEENEREAT
TE%% HRNX AT BB ETRH
= ﬂ'&?ﬁﬁux—rﬁﬁﬂxﬁémﬂ /Tff\&
1I%f¢OTE'EEIJ/T&?HE%%T%E’J%&?F:

2011

—2——%

Dividend yield (%) BB M as %R (%) 1.80
Volatility (%) K IE(%) 47.42
Risk-free interest rate (%) A [ B2 T (%) 0.79
Expected life of options (year) REARETEHRF HA(SF) 5
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) IREFEHRE(FRRET) 1.18

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative
of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the
actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated
into the measurement of fair value.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, 3,700,000 of
cancelled share options with fair value of approximately
RMB&891,000 which previously recognised in share
options reserve have been transferred to retained profits.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, 6,100,000
and 13,950,000 of forfeited or cancelled share options
with fair value of approximately RMB1,087,000 and
RMB2,794,000 respectively which previously recognised
in share options reserve had been transferred to retained
profits.

BREERE R RIEE L BIRE
o ARBHKRABEHROTERA -
%EHH/MEEETE““TQ&%T&%%?EX
B BRUSERS

+ = /‘\$1EH_IIEE‘|'&E,TXIHZ’I Eﬁﬂy\ﬁé
B HL A R o

BE_ TN+ _A=1T—HLF
B RRERERFEEERN A FED
A K #891,0007T#93,700,00015 2 5
HER R BREREEM -

i_:—;—EE—f-:H E+_E|Lt$
E-2ERM B FEERERNER
BHEEBEEINAFEINOARK
1,087,0007T & A R #2,794,0007T &9
6,100,00017 A213,950,0001H & &5 £
ERE&EAH o

HIERE —T—OFFR
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29.

30.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had 10,250,000
(2013: 13,950,000) share options outstanding under
the Scheme, which represented approximately 1.0%
(2013: 1.4%) of the Company’s shares in issue as at
that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 10,250,000 (2013:
13,950,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital and share premium of
approximately HK$800,000 (equivalent to RMB655,000)
(2013: HK$1,085,000 equivalent to RMB868,000)
and approximately HK$11,295,000 (equivalent to
RMB9,250,000) (2013: HK$15,375,000 equivalent to
RMB12,300,000), before issue expenses.

RESERVES

(@) Group
The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein for the current and prior

reporting periods are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(i) Contributed surplus

On 17 January 2011, CITIC Capital, the
Company and its shareholders had entered
into certain conditional release and discharge
agreements, pursuant to which, the new
exchangeable note would be duly released
and discharged, which had taken place on
the Listing Date, 28 January 2011, and prior
to the commencement of the trading of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.
Accordingly, the liability component of the
new exchangeable note of RMB57,768,000
on the Listing Date was extinguished and
transferred to the contributed surplus in
shareholders’ equity upon the full conversion
of the new exchangeable note.
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29.

30.

IR R (E
R-ZT—MmFE+-—A=+—H AQF
R ET &I 18 T #% 510,250,000 ( — &
— = 4F : 13,950,0001% ) & K 17 &£ #Y
=3 R e /NI A= Tk S )
N0%(ZFBE—=4F:14%) 1B #E
AARERERNERE  BETEZE
m R 1T E R BE AR RE A 2 BUER A
2% 7710,250,0000%( — & — = & :
13,950,0000% ) A2 &) 9 38 A% K ZE S
FTIE AR AN K AR 15 7 (B 5 51| #7800,0007%
TT(HEE R A R 655,000 )( = Z
— =% : 1,085,000 HERAR
#868,0007T ) &% #4911,295,0007% 7T
(HHE R AR®9,250,000T )( ==&
—=4%F : 15,375,000/ 70 HHERAR
#512,300,0007C ) GRINBREETTHISZ )

#E

(a) *x&£H
MBI MBS FRERE  KEE
R S5 IR 2 5 R 4R &

(i) BEHZEEH
RZE——F—-— A+t
H ' CITIC Capital KA T
MERRF L E T A GG
FRBR R BRI R - IR UL R
FTHAH T —F—
AZ+N\BRARE RS
MBS R PR E B 2 Al - 37
AR EREER R K
BBk o B tE - BB ET
AR ER R - N ET A
TR RREREEH S A
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30. RESERVES (continued)
(@) Group (continued)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Contributed surplus (continued)

Pursuant to the Stock Borrowing Agreement
entered into with the Subscriber on 21 June
2012, the Stock Lender lent 32,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company to the
Subscriber. Upon initial recognition, the
value of such contribution amounting to
approximately RMB12,183,000 from the
substantial shareholder was accounted for as
a deemed contribution in the shareholder’s
equity. The carrying amount of such
contribution from the substantial shareholder
is not remeasured in subsequent years.

On 17 December 2014, the Company was
informed by Best Mark that 32,000,000 shares
had been transferred by the Subscriber to Best
Mark and the transaction set out in the Call
and Put Option Confirmation was terminated.

Statutory surplus fund

In accordance with the relevant regulations
applicable in the PRC, the Group’s subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer
a certain percentage of its statutory annual
profits after tax (after offsetting any prior
period’s losses), if any, to the statutory surplus
fund until the balance of the fund reaches
50% of its registered capital. Subject to certain
restrictions as set out in the relevant PRC
regulations, the statutory surplus fund may be
used to offset against accumulated losses of
the PRC subsidiary. The amount of the transfer
is subject to the approval of the board of
directors of the PRC subsidiary.

Exchange fluctuation reserve

The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from
the translation of the financial statements of
operations outside the PRC which are dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy
set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

B

30. f#fE(&

(a) #&£E(E)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

—E-EFR

EREERE)
BER-_ZFT—_FH
T+ —HERBATILHN
Bk BRARREA
g AQAE ERRK
32,000,0000% » 7 & X HE
R ERETERRTEN
B E N B ARK
12,183,000 * 7 A% R 4
TETARYBREE
& BHREEERREELAE
EREEREBFETT
BHETE

RZE—WOF+ZA++
B N2 7] JBest Marks
40> 32,000,0000% I% 17 2
B R B A B E TBest
Mark - 3R B8 K 38y HA 4 7
REFAFRZHELKIE-

EEBGBARE
RIBEFBEERRER RS - AN
SEAERBKZNMHNE R
BIARAE FERBRIL S
M(E & ERBERREE
B(mE)NETBESLLE
BREZXTBHBAES BEE
N HEHEINEZME
AR50% /& 1k A E BB A
&% R AR 3 B S
NAENRFHEE - HEAEST
HEFRBEERNE TR
IR - R SRR P E
MEBARMNESSHE-

E 5B B# R

EX KB EEHERFRRES
FONE BTG MR PTE
ER—YIINEZER - JIRE
RAMBRRMEIMENE
TR ASRBRIE
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30. f&f(&

(b) Company (b) A&2ATF
Capital Share
Share Contributed redemption options  Accumulated
Notes ~ premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
g%
RtVEE  EMB% RORE BRERE  EHER 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wi ARBTT ARMTT AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2013 R-Z-=E-f—-H 353,205 395,026 316 7,259 (71,053) 684,753
Profit and total comprehensive ~ EREFRZENALE
income for the year - - - - 1517 1517
Repurchase and cancellation of BRI RzF k4
shares 28 (2,270) = 208 = (208) (2,270)
Equity-settled share option IR BB RER
arrangements 29 - - - (3,489) 3,881 39
At 31 December 2013 and 1 RZE-—=
January 2014 TZA=+-Ak
“3-1mE-A-H 350,935 395,026 524 3,710 (65,863) 684,392
Loss and total comprehensive  ERBERZER 2%
expense for the year - - - - (14,987) (14,987)
Equity-settled share option HREGERERELH
arrangements - - - (891) 891 -
At 31 December 2014 R-Z-IE
T-A=t-H 350,935 395,026 524 2,879 (79,959) 669,405
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

31. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group leases a production plant and office premises
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for these
properties are negotiated for terms of three years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

31. KEBENZHE
NEBREBELEHAOLTHAELER
BEEBAE - Z2EYENBHRLEHE
EAE=Fo

REHRPR - AR ERE A A BEHL
EAR T35 B HE R R R&RIEE

operating leases falling due as follows: SRERAT
2014 2013
—E-F —T—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETTT
Within one year —ER 3,936 7,266
In the second to fifth years, inclusive —ERF(RREEEMTE) 523 4,186
4,459 11,452

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not
have any significant operating lease arrangements.

32. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments
detailed in note 31 above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

REBYPR - AR B L EEMEKRE
SHOZYE-

32. &IE
B | SCBFE31 BT R il O A & FH 4 R IE

S REBR 2 HMERE A TAELE -

2014 2013
—E-IF —F—=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETTT
Contracted for capital commitment in BEARHEBRAFIKER
respect of investment in a subsidiary STH) B AN HE 128,171 128,171
Contracted for commitments in respect of: 74 A I8 B K 5] 49 #¥E :
— advertising and consultancy services — BE R AR 159 -
— research and development — 2% - 333
— property, plant and equipment —% BB REE 515 -
— product licences —EmaT A& 800 5,264
— manufacturing and distributorship — RS HET A R
licence = 18,256
1,474 23,853

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did not
have any significant commitments.

REAZK - AN 2 5] 3 A A {A] 5 KK

IR /t/g
o |'HD
iy

HIERE —T—OFFR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

33.

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group is as follows:

33. BEALRS

AEBTZERABNMESNT

2014 2013

—F-0F =%

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET AREF T

Fees s = =

Other emoluments: Hi e -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & « EBE R EYFZ 1,575 2,986
Contributions to retirement benefits ERORAE T EIfH R

schemes 23 24

1,598 3,010

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings (note 24), convertible
notes and warrants (note 25), net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
directors of the Company consider the cost of capital
and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors of the Company,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.
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mE M BRRWE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 35. RERE TSI A

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of RZE—EmHER_ZTE—=F+_A
financial instruments as at 31 December 2014 and 2013 T+ HERZEemIAREAEN
are as follows: ™
Financial assets SREE
2014 2013
—ZE-mEF =4
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

Loans and receivables B B FOR
Trade and bills receivables FE U 5 BR 7R B Uk R 4 41,533 62,283
Deposits and other receivables (note 20) &% K E b fEU K IAE (Kfa£20) 2,258 13,491
Pledged deposits EEHEFER 5,696 5,546
Cash and bank balances 4 NLIR1TAE 64 1,148,881 1,173,494
1,198,368 1,254,814
Financial liabilities SHEEE
2014 2013
“E-IF “F-=F
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
Financial at Financial at
liabilities at  amortised liabilities at ~ amortised
FVTPL cost Total FVTPL cost Total
BRAYE SABHERA BATE NEBHEKA
TtAB®EN itEH STABREMN TR

tHAR ERAR RE =RAR IRBE he
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RVB000  RWMB'000
ARRTR  ARMTn  ARMTz  ARBTR ARETR  ARETR

Non-derivative financial ~ F{T44B&%E

liabilities
Trade and bills payables  ENZEZEHRENES - 48,297 48,297 - 35,116 35,116
Other payables (note 23) ~ EtERNFB(HH23) - 2,12 2,12 - 21,425 21,425
Accruals (note 23) K ERH223) - 7,954 7,954 - 8,665 8,665
Interest-bearing bank TEBIEE

borrowings - 121884 121,884 - 142,000 142,000
Convertible notes TRREE 53,123 = 53,123 79,946 = 79,946
Amount due to a director Ef—ZEZZE = = = - 33,440 33,440

53,123 200,247 253,370 79,946 240,646 320,592

Derivative financial liabilities f1448&(E
Warrants TREE 4,137 - 4,137 3,019 - 3,019

HEBY —B-mEsR 123
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE_—F—MHF+-_A=+—HIFE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 36. ERI T AN A FEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair value
on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information
about how the fair values of these financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value as at
Financial liabilities 31 December 2014

Fair value hierarchy

FEERBEEEHEREZ N VES
ENTREENRSHAENATFE

REZHYPR  AEBENETEHE
EReREBEREATENE - TRE
JnEemEERERBERFEE
EAAN(LERAANGETANE
AB)HIEBEER -

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

R=-F—MNF

EA= =N +-ZA=+—HHWATE NEEEZER HEFEREEHAE
Convertible notes Liabilities, Level 2 Binomial Model
RMB53,123,000 The key inputs are set out in

note 25

AR R a8\ FR —IEAER
AR¥ES3,123,0007T F 28 AMEHRMIFE25

Warrants Liabilities, Level 2 Binomial Model
RMB4,137,000 The key inputs are set out in

note 25

RRRAERE afE- FR —IEAER
AR¥4,137,0007T F 28 AMEHRMIE25

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recognised in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair
values.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

36. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

37.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy
As at 31 December 2014

36. ERMITEAMAFEFEE)

NEEER
R-ZE-NFE+=-A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E— EZAR B=H; g

RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT ARET ARET

Convertible Notes Al I =R = 53,123 = 53,123

Warrants AR = 4,137 = 4,137

As at 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+_-_H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E—1 F-R/ E= ke

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREFIT ARETIT AREFIT AREF T

Convertible Notes AR EE - 79,946 - 79,946

Warrants R — 3,019 = 3,019
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. i EREEE N REE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments, include trade
and bills receivables, other receivables, pledged deposits,
cash and bank balances, trade and bills payables, other
payables and accruals, interest-bearing bank borrowings,
convertible notes, warrants, and amount due to a
director. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk and commodity price risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

B

AEENFESRTABERKES
RANMERRE HRKRE B
EREX R RRITES BHE
ZEARENRE  EARAKAR
BB FFRRTEE ATMEER
B RREINEN-—BRESHA-
ZEEBMTANFBENSHMEHRE -

AEESRTANTIERRBREING
R EERR - MEER RBHES
2B K 7 am (B AR RV B o TS XX 51 AR 4R
FRIEZFRBHNER - BEEEEENM
B2 AR - DAREDR I B A0 8 R0t
PREUE E HFE E ©

—-mEER
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional

currency exposures. Such

exposures arise from sales transactions and financing
denominated in United States dollars (“US$"”) and Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"). As the HK$ is virtually pegged

to the US$, the Group does

not expect any significant

movements in the US$/HK$ exchange rates and

accordingly.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s (loss)/profit before tax.

MEEEEREENREERE)

S LB

AEEAERSEERR  TE2RE N
Ern(Ex)EBETTETDFHER
HEXZEBMEETD ANBTER
FEXTHE AEEBRHAETELAE

TERORE 3 S EAEE -
TRETN MR WA S

ERFETE  ARERBA(FR),/
4 ) 4 22 T R )& TR T B BB MO
R

Increase/
(decrease)

in the

Group'’s (loss)/
profit before

Increase/
(decrease) in

US$ rate tax
AEBIRBA
(&8]) /
EnERLA/ wmRLEH
(&) (%)
% RMB'000
ARBTFT
2014 —E-ME
If US$ strengthens against RMB i T ARETHE 5 1,588
If US$ weakens against RMB fWETHARERE (5) (1,588)
2013 —T-=F
If US$ strengthens against RMB ETEAREAE 5 (2,161)
If US$ weakens against RMB WETEARKERE (5) 2,161

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should needs arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the
Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties and financial guarantees provided by
the Group is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in the PRC, which accounted for
19% (2013: 38%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2014.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 21%
(2013: 22%) and 53% (2013: 58%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s interest-
bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

HIERE —T—OFFR

MEREEENRBRE)

EERR
W-F-ME+-A=+—R A%
0 B 7 R BT R AT R A
B4R O A0 B B VR AR T A
B AK A BOA T BER - AR
BARBRREASIBENERRS
B FE AV PRELE -

ABEERREERE AEEERE
BCZkEENHAEEEERER
BmOHAEEE UNERHEGBEER
Fr AR AR & i U [ 780 H (B TR SR ER IR 3
T8 Mo AEBRZHRHMREE
BB R 5 EIRH) R UL @ B8 - FE
REE L & SR E B 18 LA B R BE
WEHBE-FEME  NRABES
R AEENEERBRERERE -

HRE T REBRRFARERTRE
BRFRMERITT BRBHESNEER
/\/\ﬁ’zﬁ

AEERWEVESSNEERRE
DEREFRE FRER_ZT— m$
+-A=+—BHEKRESERE
B119%(—ZF—=4 : 38%)°

$$.ﬁ$¢'1m,§\ﬂﬁ JR A 2 e UL

BN EERN2I%(ZE—=5F:
22%)&53%( T—=14F :58%) 5
DRARERAERNZEARERAKR
BFe
T = & b

AR BE RS RS RR
EAREEIZT S ‘Eﬁ%fi’]ﬁﬁfﬂﬁgﬁiﬁ
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the floating
interest rate borrowings in order to manage its interest
rate risks. The interest-bearing bank borrowings, cash
and short term deposits are stated at amortised cost and
not revalued on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest
income and expenses are credited/charged to the income
statement as earned/incurred.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's net profit (through
the impact on floating rate borrowings)

37. MBEREEENREERE)

FZ=@EM(E)
AEBTHEERENZEEBEUE
BHEAMEXER -;TEETEE -RE
R O ER AR Mg
FHEH - ZBIWART HM B
EHREBEL T AER k-

TRERHABEEMEERTTE
ZSEI}%%U}FEJ( FERBERE)EF
K2 BRI E B BRRIE -

(Increase)/

decrease in

Increase in  (loss)/profit
interest rate before tax
BRBL AT

(&518), %A

Fl=Egm  (Em), mD>
(basis points) RMB’000

(ZE) ARETT

2014 — O
2013 :T =
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #EZE_—FT—F+-_HA=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2014, the Group
has available unutilised overdraft and short-term bank
loan facilities of approximately RMB40,000,000 and
RMB23,000,000 respectively.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve
at the end of the reporting period.

HIERE —T—OFFR

7. BBEREREBNWRBERE

ErBpEcERERT @ NEBE
W R EEBRSRABRNAEKHE
LEMFEReMAEEFEYKTE X
BERERSRENDNFE - BE
EBERRTEENERBR LR

oS S

BT ERRA -

AEBEKBRITEEEARBDESH
BERF- R -_E—WNFE+_A=+—
B AEETHAmMERESBNES RE
HRTERMES N AEAREK
40,000,0007T & A R #23,000,0007T °

TRAVARETES R A B
TERNIBMBER - ZRBREAEEA]
EREERNRT AHEBRAEDN
AFBRBEREMMBE - HMIEITE
TRAGENTIERERHEERBH
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. MEEREEENREERE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) nREESER(E)
2014
—E-mF
On Less than 1to 5 Carrying
demand 12 months years Total amount
DR
RERE +ZEA —Z&F B IREE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRE ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR

Non-derivative financial JE4T4& SR B &

liabilities
Trade and bills e E SRR
payables ANESE - 48,297 = 48,297 48,297
Other payables H th < 5RI8
(note 23) (K1aE23) - 22,112 - 22,112 22,112
Accruals (note 23) EErER
(KtzE23) - 7,954 - 7,954 7,954
Interest-bearing bank =t EIRITEE
borrowings - 129,197 - 129,197 121,884
Convertible notes QIEd e - 46,774 - 46,774 53,123
- 254,334 - 254,334 253,370
Derivative financial TEERas
liabilities
Warrants RIXHERE - - 4,137 4,137 4,137
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

MEREEENRBRE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESERE(E)
2013
—T—=F
On Less than 1t05 Carrying
demand 12 months years Total amount
RERE  +Zf@A —ERF 1EEE BREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
Non-derivative financial FEfTE S BIE (&
liabilities
Trade and bills FERE SRR K&
payables FENEE - 35,116 - 35,116 35,116
Other payables H Ath < 58
(note 23) (HfaE23) 21,425 -~ - 21,425 21,425
Accruals (note 23) EErER
(KtzE23) - 8,665 - 8,665 8,665
Interest-bearing bank s ERITEE
borrowings - 150,520 - 150,520 142,000
Convertible notes ABRREE - 54,195 11,407 65,602 79,946
Amount due to a B —RES
director IR 33,440 — — 33,440 33,440
54,865 248,496 11,407 314,768 320,592
Derivative financial PTESRMERE
liabilities
Warrants R RE RS - = 3,019 3,019 3,019

HigRY —T—IEFR
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37.

38.

39.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates
differ to those estimates of interest rates determined at
the end of the reporting period.

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of
the Group’s products include rubber and plastics. The
Group is exposed to fluctuations in the prices of these
raw materials which are influenced by global as well as
regional supply and demand conditions. Fluctuations in
the prices of raw materials could adversely affect the
Group's financial performance. The Group historically has
not entered into any commodity derivative instruments to
hedge the potential commodity price changes.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 13 March 2015, the Company entered into a warrant
subscription agreement (the “Warrant Subscription
Agreement”) with two warrant subscribers (the “Warrant
Subscribers”) in relation to the issue of a total of
88,000,000 warrants (the “Warrant”) to the Warrant
Subscribers at the issue price of HK$0.07 per Warrant.

The Warrants entitle the Warrant Subscribers to subscribe
for 88,000,000 shares (the “New Shares”) of initially
HK$1.5 per New Share (subject to adjustments in
accordance with the terms of the Warrants) for a period
of eighteen months commencing from the date of issue
of the Warrants. The net proceeds from the Warrant
issue, after the deduction of related expenses, are
estimated to be approximately HK$6,000,000. Such net
proceeds will be applied by the Company as the general
working capital of the Group. Completion of the Warrant
issue is subject to the fulfillment of the conditions
referred to Warrant Subscription Agreement.

Details of the Warrant issue are set out in the
announcement dated 13 March 2015.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 March 2015.

37.

38.

39.
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